FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

- d" P Pirtek USA LLC
. IRTE K A Delaware Limited Liability Company
300 Gus Hipp Boulevard

Rockledge, Florida 32955
Telephone: (321) 701-3330
www.pirtekusa.com

The franchise offered is for the right to own and operate a PIRTEK® service and supply center
business (“Business”), which will consist of the sale, custom assembly and installation of industrial
and hydraulic hoses, fixed tube assemblies, fittings and related components and other distinctive
products and services.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a PIRTEK® franchised business is
$216,400235,137 to $649,360666,638, which includes $1H4;660130,888 to $281,6060297,437 that
must be paid to the franchisor or an affiliate for each outlet. If you sign a Development Agreement
to develop multiplemore than one PIRTEK® franchised businessesbusiness, the total investment
necessary to begln operatlons for each outlet under the Area Development Agreement is $53.,000

affiliate-the same as the 1nvestment disclosed above2 except that you must prepay the In1t1a1
Franchisee Fee of $55.000 for each additional outlet you commit to develop under the

Development Agreement.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. Note, however, that no government agency has verified the information
contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact the Franchise
Development Department at 300 Gus Hipp Boulevard, Rockledge, Florida 32955, (321) 701-3330.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure
Document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your
contract and this Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can
help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to
Buying a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document is
available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or
by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also
visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.
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13- Receipts

Item1

THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

2 <c

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “PIRTEK,” “we,” “us” or any
similar reference means PIRTEK USA LLC, the franchisor. “You,” “your” or any similar
reference means the person who buys the franchise. If the franchisee is a corporation, partnership
or other entity, “you” may also mean its owners. Certain provisions of the franchise agreement
apply to your owners and are noted in this Disclosure Document.

We are a Delaware limited liability company formed in June 1997. Our principal business
address is 300 Gus Hipp Boulevard, Rockledge, Florida 32955. We do business under our
corporate name and PIRTEK. Our agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit 1 to this
Disclosure Document. We do not have predecessors required to be disclosed.

Our parent is Pirtek Holdco, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company formed in
September 2023 (“Holdco’). The principal address for Holdco is 2601 Olive Street, Suite 1400,
Dallas, TX 75201. Holdco does not offer franchises in any line of business and does not supply
products or services to you.

We do not have the-fellewingany affiliates operating a PIRTEK Business or providing
products or services to franchisees:.
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Additionally, our affiliate, Princeton Equity Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, is a private equity firm with its principal address at 47 Hulfish Street, Suite 305,
Princeton, New Jersey 08542. Princeton Equity Group, LLC does not offer franchises in any line
of business and does not supply products or services to you; however, through common ownership
under Princeton Equity Group, LLC, we have other affiliates that offer franchises or provide
products and services to franchisees for the following businesses:

SB Oil Change Franchising, LLC, is a Delaware limited liability company, with
a principal business address at 301 North Main Street, Suite 2030, Winston Salem, North
Carolina 27101. SB Oil Change Franchising, LLC grants to franchisees the right to own
and operate Strickland Brothers 10 Minute Oil Change franchise businesses providing oil
changes and related automotive services. SB Oil Change Franchising, LLC began offering
franchises in 2019 and had 66 franchises open and operating as of December 31,
20232024. SB Oil Change Franchising, LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines
of business or provides any services to you.

CMY Franchising, LLC, is a Delaware limited liability company, with a principal
business address at 3917 Double Dome Road, Austin, Texas 78734. CMY Franchising,
LLC grants to franchisees the right to own and operate Card My Yard franchise businesses
providing celebratory yard greeting products and services. CMY Franchising, LLC began
offering franchises in 2017 and had 533547 franchises open and operating as of December
31, 20232024. CMY Franchising, LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines of
business or provides any services to you.

Five Star Bath, LLC, is a Utah limited liability company, with a principal business
address at 761 W. Spring Creek Place, Springyville, Utah 84663. Five Star Bath, LLC grants
to franchisees the right to own and operate Five Star Bath Solutions franchise businesses
offering bathroom renovation services. Five Star Bath, LLC began offering franchises in
2015 and had +65261 franchises open and operating as of December 31, 26232024. Five

Star Bath, LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines of business or provides any
services to you.
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Gotcha Covered Franchising, LLC is a Colorado limited liability company, with
a principal business address at 303 S. Broadway, Suite 200-153, Denver, Colorado 80209.
Gotcha Covered Franchising, LLC grants franchises the right to operate Gotcha Covered
franchise business offering window covering and treatment services. Gotcha Covered
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Franchising, LLC began offering franchises in 2009 and had 165 franchises open
and operating as of December 31, 20232024. Gotcha Covered Franchising, LLC has not
offered franchises in any other lines of business or provides any services to you.

Ringside Development Company d/b/a BioOne Colorado, Inc., is a Colorado
corporation, with a principal business address at 761 W. Spring Creek Pl., Springville,
Utah, 84663. Ringside Development Company grants to franchisees the right to own and
operate Bio-One franchise businesses offering restoration services removing regulated and
non-regulated bio-medical waste. Ringside Development Company began offering
franchises in 2010 and had 429131 franchises open and operating as of December 31,
20232024. Ringside Development Company has not offered franchises in any other lines
of business or provides any services to you.

1-800 Packouts Franchise, LLC, is a Georgia limited liability company, with a
principal business address at 761 W. Spring Creek PI., Springville, Utah 84663. 1-800-
Packouts Franchise, LLC grants to franchisees the right to own and operate 1-800-Packouts
franchise businesses providing packing, storage, and restoration of residential, commercial,
and industrial contents. 1-800-Packouts Franchise, LLC began offering franchises in 2015
and had 5654 franchises open and operating as of December 31, 20232024. 1 800
Packouts Franchise, LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines of business or
provides any services to you.

Mosquito Shield Franchise, LLC, is a Delaware limited liability company, with
a principal business address at 500 E. Washington Street, # 24, North Attleboro,
Massachusetts 02760. Mosquito Shield Franchise, LLC grants to franchisees the right to
own and operate Mosquito Shield Franchise businesses providing mosquito treatment
services. Mosquito Shield Franchise, LLC began offering franchises in 2013 and had
340383 franchises open and operating as of December 31, 26232024. Mosquito Shield
Franchise, LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines of business or provides any
services to you.

D1 Sports Franchise, LLC, is a Tennessee limited liability company, with a
principal business address at 7115 S. Springs Drive, Franklin, TN 37067. D1 Sports
Franchise, LLC grants to franchisees the right to own and operate D1 franchise businesses
the right to own and operate training facilities offering athletic-based scholastic and adult
group training, coaching and personal training, and related products and services under the

“D1®” name and marks. D1 Sports Franchise, LLC began offering franchises in 2015 and
had 97130 franchises open and operating as of December 31, 20232024. D1 Sports
Franchise, LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines of business or provides any
services to you.

Ellie Fam LLC, is a Minnesota limited liability company, with a principal business
address at 1370 Mendota Heights Road, Mendota Heights, Minnesota 55120. Ellie Fam
LLC grants to franchisees the right to own and operate Ellie Fam franchise businesses
offering outpatient counseling and therapy clinics. Ellie Fam LLC began offering
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franchises in 2021 and had 486240 franchises open and operating as of December 31,
20232024. Ellie Fam LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines of business or
provides any services to you.
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Stretch Zone Franchising LL.C, is a Florida limited liability company, with a
principal business address at 6700 North Andrews Avenue, #210, Fort Lauderdale, FL
33309. Stretch Zone Franchising LLC grants to franchisees the right to own and operate
Stretch Zone franchise businesses offering advanced certified practitioner-assisted
stretching to individuals. Stretch Zone Franchising LLC began offering franchises in
20472016 and had 332377 franchises open and operating as of December 31, 20232024.
Stretch Zone Franchising LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines of business or
provides any services to you.

BBC Holdings, LL.C, is a Florida limited liability company with a principal
business address at 2214 NW 1st Place, Miami, FL. 33127. BBC Holdings, LLC grants to
franchisees the right to own and operate Barry’s Boot Camp franchise businesses offering

remium high-intensity interval training (“HIIT”) workouts. BBC Holdings, LLC began
offering franchises in 1998 and had 24 franchises open and operating as of December 31,
2024. BBC Holdings, LLC has not offered franchises in any other lines of business or
provides any services to you.

We grant franchises to qualified persons for the right to own and operate a PIRTEK service
and supply center business (the “Business” or “Service and Supply Center””). We also are in the
business of the administration of our franchise system, which includes sourcing, purchasing and
distributing Inventory Products (as defined in Item 8), which in turn you are required to purchase
solely from us as described in Item 8. We started granting PIRTEK service and supply center
franchises in June 1997. We have not previously offered franchises in any other line of business.
As of December 31, 20232024, there were +4+162 franchised PIRTEK businesses (Tier 1
Business and Tier 2 Business, as defined below).

As the franchisor of the PIRTEK System in the United States, the franchise granted to you
is the right to own and operate a PIRTEK Business according to the terms of the standard PIRTEK
Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”). A copy of the Franchise Agreement is
included in this Disclosure Document as Exhibit 3.

If you are approved to develop muttiplemore than one new PIRTEK Businesses you will
be offered and must sign a Development Agreement (“Development Agreement”), Exhibit 2 to
this Disclosure Document, which authorizes you to develop two or more Service and Supply
Centers within the specified geographic area identified in the Development Agreement.
Under the

Development Agreement, you will be required to develop and open each PIRTEK Business in
accordance with a “Development Schedule,” which will set forth specific time frames to open each
location, and for each PIRTEK Business, you will be required to sign the applicable form of the
then-current form of Franchise Agreement (which form of franchise agreement is different from
the current franchise agreement included within this Franchise Disclosure Document).

During the operation of your Business, you will use our distinctive products and services,
standards and specifications, sales and business techniques and image (the “System”), as well as
the trademarks associated with the System (the “Marks”) as further described in Item 13. Your
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Business will consist of the sale, custom assembly and installation of industrial and hydraulic
hoses, fixed tube assemblies, fittings and related components and other distinctive products and
services. You will operate your Business from a Service & Supply Center and mobile sales and
service units (“MSSU’s”™) (collectively referred to sometimes as the “Center””) within a particular
geographic territory (the “Territory”). MestSome franchisees will develop their Business as a
“Tier 1 Business”, which means that you will develop and operate your Service & Supply Center
in the initial months of the Business with 2 MSSU’s, and continue to add additional MSSU’s as
your Business grows. fn—eertain—instances,—we-mayauthorizeafranchiseetoOther franchisees
operate a “Tier 2 Business”, which means that you will initially operate two MSSUs and without a
Service & Supply Center, with the requirement that you add an additional MSSU and open a
Service & Supply Center within specified timeframes set forth in Appendix A to the Franchise
Agreement. As set forth in Appendix
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_A to the Franchise Agreement, if you operate a Tier 2 Business, then in addition to paying
the Initial Franchise Fee over time you must (i) add 1 additional MSSU and 1 MSS technician, for
a total of 3 MSSUs, within +524 months from the date of the Franchise Agreement is signed, and
(i1) open a Service & Supply Center and add a Technical Sales Rep with primary responsibilities
for selling and promoting the PIRTEK Business in the Territory, within 39 months from the date
of the Franchise Agreement is signed. The Franchise Agreement for a Tier 1 Business and a Tier
2 Business is the same, except as set forth in Appendix A to the Franchise Agreement. The
disclosures in this Disclosure Document apply to both a Tier 1 Business and Tier 2 Business,
except where we include separate disclosures for each of the Tiers.

You will sell the PIRTEK products and services from your Business to a vast array of
mobile and stationary (fixed) plant and equipment users within the following markets, depending
on the location of your Business: earthwork and construction; industrial manufacturing; food
production; materials handling; air, sea and land transport; agriculture; mineral exploration and
mining; and government and utilities businesses and others.

You will compete with other businesses within the “bulk” or Original Equipment
Manufacturing (“OEM”) hose and fitting market. This market is very competitive and includes
national and international brand product suppliers like Aeroquip, Parker Hannifan and Gates
Rubber Co. Other competitors may be generally associated with rubber tire production and include
Goodyear, Dunlop, Yokohama and Bridgestone.

There are no laws or regulations specific to the operation of a business featuring the sale,
assembly and installation of the PIRTEK products, although there may be specific regulations
applicable in some industries in which your customers operate. For example, in the food industry,
stainless steel piping must be used in food processing. In addition, your Business will be subject
to federal, state and local laws regarding the storage, use and disposal of hazardous materials.

There also will be other local, state and federal laws applicable to your Business that apply to
businesses generally, and we urge you to make further inquiries about these laws. It is your sole
responsibility to obtain and keep in force all necessary licenses and permits required by public
authorities.

Ttem?2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE
PIRTEK

Chief Executive Officer: Kim Gubera

Ms. Gubera has been our Chief Executive Officer in Rockledge, Florida since January
2019. She also served as our President in Rockledge, Florida from August 2020 through October
2023.— She served as our Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from January 2018 through
December 2018, and our Corporate Controller from February 2016 to December 2017, each in
Rockledge, Florida. Prior to joining PIRTEK, Ms. Gubera served as the Director of Finance at
U.S. Lawns, Inc., based in Orlando, Florida, from August 2000 to February 2016.
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Chief Financial Officer: Jennifer Healy

Ms. Healy has been our Chief Financial Officer in Rockledge, Florida since August 2023.
She served as our Director of Finance from April 2021 to July 2023 in Rockledge, Florida. Prior
to joining Pirtek, Ms. Healy served as the Regional Finance Director with Aramark Corp. from
August 2019 to April 2021 and the Region Finance Manager with Aramark Corp. from September
2012 to August 2019, each in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Chief Marketing Officer: James Doyle

Mr. Doyle has been our Chief Marketing Officer in Rockledge, Florida since April 2024.
Prior to joining PIRTEK, he served as Vice President of Marketing from June 2023 through April
2024 for Air Pros USA in Hollywood, Florida. From August 2020 through December 2022, he
served as Vice President of Marketing for Threshold Brands, LLC in Boston, Massachusetts. He
also served as Vice President of Marketing for MaidPro Franchising in Boston, Massachusetts
from May 2005 through August 2020.

Vice President of Franchise Development: John Dobelbower

Mr. Dobelbower has been our Vice President of Franchise Development in Rockledge,
Florida since March 2024. Prior to joining PIRTEK, Mr. Dobelbower served as the Team Lead of
Franchise Development at Lawn Pride and The Grounds Guys;— (both Neighborly Brand
companies), based-in Waco, Texas, from May 2020 to February 2024. From January 2015 to May

2020, Mr. Dobelbower served as the Chief Executive Officer of Green Option Recycling in Waco,
Texas.

Vice President of Franchise Operations: Kieran Scott

Mr. Scott has been our Vice President of Franchise Operations in Rockledge, Florida since
August 2024. Prior to joining PIRTEK, Mr. Scott served as President-Growth Brands, of Threshold
Brands, LLC from January 2022 through August 2024 in Boston, Massachusetts. From April 2019
through December 2021, Mr. Scott served as Vice President-Strategic Initiatives for Scenthound
Holdings, LLC in Jupiter, Florida.

Director of Operations: Den-SteutMichael Rutan

Mr. Rutan has been our Director of Operations in Rockledge, Florida since July 2024. He
served as our Product Development Manager from January 2022 through June 2024, as our
Operations Manager from October 2019 through December 2021, and as an Operational Support
Specialist from May 2019 through September 2019, each in Rockledge, Florida.

Director of Information Technolo “IT”): Robert Spiteri

Mr. SteutSpiteri has been our Director of Operatiens]T since January 2025 in Rockledge,
Florida—sinee Mareh—2023. He served as our Business Development]T Manager in Rockledge,
Florida from Eebruary2022-te-Mareh—20623June 2020 through December 2024. Prior to joining
Lk PIRTEK, Mr, S e b Dot o b o s n Dolbe Lo o Lo
Anrgust2016-to-February-2022Spiteri was an IT Technical Project Manager for IBM in Orlando,
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Florida from September 2019 through May 2020.
Director of Marketing: Carissa Wendkos

Ms. Wendkos has been our Director of Marketing in Rockledge, Florida since March 2024.
Prior to joining PIRTEK, Ms. Wendkos served as the Director of Marketing for Prime Vacations
in Bradenton, Florida from January 2023 through January 2024. Ms. Wendkos also served as the
Senior Brand Manager for PIRTEK in Rockledge, Florida from March 2021 through January 2023.
From February 2016 through March 2021, Ms. Wendkos served as the President of Photo Station
LLC, in both St Petersburg, Florida and St. Thomas, U.S. Virgin Islands.

Franchise Training Manager: Jamie Vokes

Mr. Vokes has been our Franchise Training Manager in Rockledge, Florida since January-2003-and-
o " t for PIRTEF om-Anril 2002 throuch De 002

Item3

LITIGATION

03/31/2025
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No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.
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Item4

BANKRUPTCY
No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Item5

INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fees

Y ou must pay to us an Initial Franchise Fee of $55,000 in full when you sign the Franchise
Agreement.

Development Fees

We may, at our discretion, grant Development Agreements. The terms of the Development
Agreement are subject to negotiation. You will be required to sign the Development Agreement to
develop and open one or more PIRTEK Businesses and other financial and operational
commitments, as agreed upon by the parties. When you sign the Development Agreement, you
must prepay all of the Initial Franchlse Fees you would pay for th%ﬁrsteach Serv1ce and Supply
Center you commrt to develop s . :

the Development Agreement The fees pald under the Development Agreement will be credited

toward the initial franchise fees payable by you as you develop Service and Supply
Centers under the Development Agreement.

You must pay to us Development Fee as calculated below:

Development Fee Due Balance Due Upon Signing
Initially Subsequent Franchise
Agreement(s)
1* Service and Supply Center $55,000 $0
2" and subsequent Service and $27,56055,000 per Center $27,5000 per Center
Supply Centers

You must sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Center on or before the dates set
forth in the Development Agreement. The number of you PIRTEK Businesses you will be required
to develop and open will be determined before you sign the Development Agreement. The
Development Fee is calculated uniformly, and the amount of the actual fee will vary based on the
number of Service and Supply Centers you are required to develop.

Initial Technology Start-Up Fee

You also must pay to us, for both a Tier 1 Business and Tier 2 Business, an Initial
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Technology Start-up Fee of $8,000 to $10,000 to cover the initial costs of the various technology
licenses used to operate the Business and related start-up services. You must pay the Initial
Technology Start-up Fee before you commence business operations.

Opening Set-up Fee

We may require you to pay an Opening Set-up Fee in an amount between $0- and $14,000.
You must pay the Opening Set- up Fee on or before the first day of the initial training program. In
connection with the Opening Set-up Fee, we will spend approximately 10 to 15 business days at
your Center prior to opening to generally get you ready to open your Center for business. This
amount is not payable by a Tier 2 Business until conversion to a Tier 1 Business or if you are an
existing franchisee acquiring an additional Center.

Other Items

You must purchase from us the opening product inventory and certain items of the
equipment, uniforms and other similar items with the PIRTEK trademark (“Other Items”) for your
Tier 1 Business and Tier 2 Business. The fee for the Other Items ranges from $85;66067,888-

$234,400—+e1218,437. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2 Business and the high
estimate assumes you operate a Tier 1 Business;-and-$51,600-$128.800-for-a-Tier 2 Business.

Total Payments to Us or Our Affiliates

The combined total for the Item 5 amounts ferTFier+Business—(Initial Franchise Fee,
Opening Set-up Fee, Initial Technology Start-up Fee, and Other Items) is $14€,666130,888 to
$304,400297,437.

During our 20232024 fiscal year, we collected amounts ranging from $76,;083186.,916 to

$4+914,834203,458 (for a Tier 1 Business) and $22:84228,479 to $66,69573,979 (for a Tier 2
Business) for the Other Items described in this paragraph.

Incentive Programs

We participate in the Veterans Transition Franchise Initiative (commonly referred to as
“Vet Fran”), which seeks to provide an opportunity for veterans who want to be in business. If you
are an honorably discharged veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces, you may be eligible to receive a
$15,000 discount off the Initial Franchise Fee amount due at the time you sign the Franchise
Agreement.
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Except as described above, all amounts in this Item 5 are nonrefundable and payable in a

lump sum.
Item6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount (See Note 1) Due Date Remarks
Continuing License 4% of your Gross On or before the 10th | See Notes 2 and 10.
Fee Sales. day of the month
following the month-
corwhich the foe |
dues
Type of Fee Amount (See Note 1) Due Date Remarks
for which the fee is
due.
Marketing Fees 1.5% - 3% of your On or before the 10th | See Notes 3 and 10.
Gross Sales. day of the month
following the month
for which the fee is
due.
Local Marketing 0.375% - 0.75% of When due. See Note 4.

your Gross Sales.

Transfer Fee

The greater of $15,000
or 5% of the sale price

At time of transfer.

See Note 6. The
Transfer Fee will

be adjusted
annually in
accordance with
any annual change
in the National
Consumer Price
Index. Also see
Item 17 for
additional
information on
transfer
requirements.inform
atton-on

Remarks
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Audit and Will vary under the After inspection or Audits and
Recordkeeping Costs | circumstances. audit. inspections
generally will be at
our expense. If,
however, an audit is
made necessary by
your failure to
furnish reports,
financial statements,
tax returns or
schedules as
required under the
Franchise
Agreement, or if
any audit or
inspection reveals
that you have
understated or
underreported Gross
Sales, Continuing
License Fees,
Marketing Fees or
other amounts owed
to us by an amount_
greater than 4%, in.
addition to the
amounts owed to us,
you must reimburse
us for the cost and
out-of-pocket
expenses of the
inspection or audit.
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Interest Expenses

Will vary under the
circumstances.

When due.

See Note 5.

Renewal Fee

$2550010,000

Renewal of license.

See Note 6. The

$10,000 amount
will be adjusted
annually in
accordance with any

annual change in the
National Consumer

Price Index. See
Item 17 for more-
ot )
renewal

i

Type of Fee

Amount t

1

Due Date

Remarks

information on
renewal

requirements.

Technology Fee

$660 - $2,850 per
month.

When due.

Range covers the
minimum of 3
Syteline licenses
needed for a Tier 1
Business and the
minimum of 2
Syteline licenses
needed for a Tier 2
Business. Range
also includes the
minimum of 2
mobile licenses
needed for a Tier 2
Business and the
minimum of 4
mobile licenses
needed for a Tier 1
Business. Amounts
due to us and third
party suppliers for
software services,
mobile technology,
cyber security, and
other
communication

PIRTFEKEDD—2024
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lines and technology
services. These fees

may increase as the
Computer System

changes. See Item
11 for more

information on
computer network

Assistance Fee

system
requirements.serviee
e
Fype-ofFeelnsurance | $2,000 - $10,000 PueDateWhen RemarksSee Note 7

S e e premiums are due.

BHannual premium for

liability insurance

only; plus other annual

premiums ranging
may thercase as the
Computer-System
chanses—Sectem
R
e
B
sy%tgm—
Eociee

Type of Fee Amount (See Note 1) Due Date Remarks
asurance $2.000-$10.000 Whenpremiumsare  SeeNoted
anftpremitimtor  dues
onh=phsotherannaat
. .

from $4,000 - $30,000

or more, which will

vary under the

circumstances.

Center Relocation $2,000 When incurred. Required only if

you request our
assistance in
connection with the
relocation of your
Business.

PIRTFEKEDD—2024
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Remodeling A maximum of $5,000 | When incurred. The $5,000 amount

Expenses per year for each year will be adjusted
that you operate the annually in
Business under the accordance with any
Franchise Agreement. annual change in the

National Consumer
Price Index. The
$5,000 per year
limitation does not
apply to
modernization
requirements upon
renewal.

Costs and Attorneys’ | Will vary under When incurred. You must pay us for
Fees circumstances. our costs and
attorneys’ fees in
obtaining injunctive
or other relief for
the enforcement of
the Franchise

Agreement.
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Type of Fee

Due Date

Remarks

Restocking Fee

15%

When incurred

We have the right,
at our option, to
purchase any or all
Inventory Products
in your possession
or owned by you at
the time of
expiration or
termination of the
Franchise
Agreement. If we
exercise our-

ungualiﬁed right to

Type of Fee

Amount (See Note 1)

Due Date

Remarks

purchase your
Inventory Products,
we will pay you the
actual amount that
you paid for such
Inventory Products,
less a 15%
restocking fee, and
less the cost of
shipping.

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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Profit that we would When incurred If You purchase

h T
Qge'% have earned had Inventory Products
purchasing products -
franchisee purchased or Non-Inventory
from unapproved -
suppliers product from Us, plus Items from third
supphiers $5.000 fee, attorney’s parties (and not
fees, and other from us) in violation
damages that may of the Franchise
accrue Agreement, you will

be required to pay
us the profits we
would have received
had you purchased
the items from Us.
You will also be

required to pay Us a
$5.000 fee for
anticipated
administrative
expenses as well as
our attorney’s fees
and any other

damages that ma
accrue.

Notes:
(1) Except where otherwise noted, all fees are payable to us and are not refundable.

(2) “Gross Sales” means the total revenues and receipts from the sale of all products or
services, whether the orders for products or services originated from or were accepted at
or from the Business or at any other place. “Gross Sales” are net of any applicable sales
tax and any sales credits.

3) We will determine annually the exact percentage of Gross Sales for the monthly Marketing
Fee. The Marketing Fee for our 20242025 fiscal year (January 20242025 through
December 26242025) is 1.5%. See Item 11 for more information on marketing.

4) In addition to the Marketing Fees paid to us, you must spend at least an amount equal to 2
of your marketing Fees on approved local marketing. Your local advertising expenses may
be paid directly to third parties, although we may require you to provide us by January 31
each year with an accounting of the monies that you have spent for the preceding year on
approved local marketing, as further described in Item 11.

(5) All rates owed to us by you will bear interest computed using a fluctuating interest rate
equal to the interest rate per annum publicly announced by the Wall Street Journal as the
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“prime” rate (currently the prime rate is the base rate on corporate loans posted by at least 75%
of the nation’s 30 largest banks) as effective on the last day of the prior month plus 2%
per annum, or the maximum contract rate of interest permitted by governing law,
whichever is less, from and after the date of accrual thereof.

(6) The transfer fee of the greater of $15,000 or 5% of the sale price, and the renewal fee of
$2,56010,000, are subject to increase each year based on the annual change in the
Consumer Price Index as reported by the U.S. Department of Labor. If you are selling
more than one Center, the transfer fee is the greater of $15,000 or 5% of the sale price for
each Center/franchise.

(7) You must maintain in force general comprehensive liability insurance in a minimum
amount and with the type of coverage we designate from time to time and depending on
market conditions (currently, this is at least $3,000,000 combined single limit per
occurrence). We estimate that the average annual premium for this insurance coverage will
be approximately $2,000 - $10,000 or more. Additionally, you must purchase and maintain
in full force and effect business interruption insurance for actual losses sustained. You also
must maintain in force insurance covering operation or maintenance of any building,
equipment, MSSU motor vehicles that you own or lease in connection with your Business
and any other insurance required by local, state or federal law. Insurance premiums for
building, equipment and motor vehicles and other insurance required by law can vary
dramatically depending on the type of building, equipment or vehicle and the state in which
your Business is located, but the premiums should range from $4,000 - $30,000 or more.
We may reasonably increase the minimum liability protection requirement annually and
require different or additional kinds of insurance to reflect inflation, changes in standards
of liability, higher damage awards in public or product liability litigation or other relevant
changes in circumstances. Premiums are payable in amounts and at times as required by
your insurers. You must submit all insurance coverage for our approval at least 14 days
before you obtain possession of the Business premises. All insurance policies must name
us as an additional insured and must provide that we will receive 30 days’ prior written
notice of amendment, termination, expiration or cancellation of any policy. You must
submit to us each year a copy of the certificate or other evidence of the issuance, renewal
or extension of each insurance policy. If you fail to maintain the required insurance, we
may obtain it on your behalf and you must reimburse us for costs incurred and premiums
paid.

(8) Before you or we can initiate arbitration or litigation in connection with a dispute under
the Franchise Agreement, you will meet on an individual basis, with a member of our
executive team, within two weeks of a request for such meeting. You are responsible for
your own costs and expenses with respect to the meeting. If a party refuses to participate
in the meeting, the refusing party must pay $5,000 to the other.

9) If you conduct business in the territory or promotional zone of another PIRTEK franchisee
or the territory of a corporate or affiliate center without written authorization and in
violation of our then-current territory infringement policy, we reserve the right to charge
you a territory infringement fee per our then current territory infringement policy, which
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Leasehold

Improvements $0 - $37,000 As incurred As incurred Third Parties
(Note 6)
B e Lump sum or
EquipmentSignag | $0 - $86,0007,695| installmentsif | Before opening |UserThird Parties
¢ (Note 7) leased
Fype of Method of ToWI
Amount-(Nete- | PaymentLum | WhenDueBefore .
ExpenditureSh 1$2.500 - p sum or opening 3
. . to-be-
) $79.586 installments if
op Equipment leased MadeUs
= and/or Third
(Note 8) Parties
Mobile Sales & $20.000 - Lump sum or
Service Units $3 6 000 installments if | Before opening Third Parties
(Note 89) ’ leased
Tracking System $300 As incurred As incurred Third Parties
Prepaid Rent and
Security Deposit | $700 - $5,000 Lump sum Before opening Landlord
(Note 910)
Opening
Inventory $55:60065.38 As incurred Before opening Usand T hird
8- Parties
(Note 11) $1426,000138,
851
Insurgnce $20,000 - . . Insurance
Premiums As incurred Before opening .
$40,000 companies
(Note
1012)
Utility Deposits
ar}d Business $400 - $3,000 As incurred Before opening Third parties
Licenses
(Note H-13)
Attorneys’ Fees .
(Note 1214) $2,000 - $5,000 Lump sum As incurred Attorney
Consumables 700 - $1400 As incurred As incurred Usand/or [iurd and/o'r Lhird
Parties
Type of Amount Method of w
: hen D Payment is to
Expenditure (Note 1) Payment be Made
(Note 15)

PIRTFEKEDD—2024
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i Y - Y . . 1
Shop Supplies & | $3.957 - $8.925 As incurred As incurred Us and/or Third

Tools (Note 16) = = Parties

Safety
Equipment 192 — 1,881 As incurred As incurred

(Note 17)

Freight/Delivery
Charges (Note $1,000 - $9,000 As incurred As incurred Third Parties

18)

Additional
Funds — 5 $50,000 - As incurred Before opening | Employees, third
Months $200,000 and as incurred parties, etc.

(Note +3219)
TOTAL $216;400235,137 - $619,300666,638
(Note 1420)

I

Notes:

(1) General. This table includes the estimated initial investments for a Tier 1 Business and Tier
2 Business. The estimated minimum requirements will vary depending on factors like your
financial condition and the arrangements and business decisions you make. Except where
otherwise noted, all fees that you pay to us are nonrefundable. Third-party lessors and
suppliers will decide if payments to them are refundable.

(2) Initial Franchise Fee. The Initial Franchise Fee for Tier 1 Businesses and Tier 2 Businesses
is $55,000, and is payable in a lump sum to us when you sign the Franchise Agreement.

If you sign a Development Agreement you must prepay the In1t1a1 Franchlse Fees you
would pay for the 3% C C
é@%}eﬁthﬁn&%&nelns%e&fer—e&eh%ddﬂe&%each SerV1ce and Supply Center you
commit to develop under the Development Agreement upon signing the Development
Agreement, which amounts will be credited toward the Initial Franchise Fees payable by
you as you develop Service and Supply Centers under the Development Agreement. You
will be required to sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Service and Supply
Center. The Initial Franchise Fees, Development Fees, and their refund policies are
described in Item 5.

3) Opening Set-Up Fee. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2 Business and will not
pay the Opening Set-Up Fee. The high estimate assumes you operate a Tier 1 Business and
3)-will pay the Opening Set-Up Fee, which ranges from $5;6000 to $14,000. The
Opening Set—UpSet-Up Fee is not refundable.

4) Initial Technology Start-Up Fee & Computer System. The Initial Technology Start-Up Fee
is not refundable. The cost of the Computer System varies based on factors unique to your
Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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business (such as strength of internet connection and others) that may necessitate special
hardware or other unique components to achieve a network connection.

%) Training. You must pay the expenses for your attendees to attend our initial training
program, including transportation, lodging, meals and wages. We describe our training
program in Item 11. These costs will depend, in part, on the distance you must travel, the
number of attendees you have, and the type of accommodations you choose.

(6) Leasehold Improvements. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2 Business and
will not incur costs related to leasehold improvements.

The high estimate assumes you operate a Tier 1 Business and will incur costs related to
leasehold improvements which range from $5,000 to $37,000. The PIRTEK Center
premises for a Tier 1 Business will ordinarily be leased rather than owned. We estimate
that the average center will have approximately 2,000 - 4,000 square feet or more. Your
initial investment for leasehold improvements will vary depending upon local labor costs
and whether the building is a completed structure immediately adaptable to installation of
necessary fixtures and equipment or a location where construction is in progress. These
variables affect how different obligations will be distributed between landlords and tenants
under different lease agreements and the costs of acquisition and construction. We must
approve all leasehold improvements prior to construction. Although the cost of leasehold
improvements will vary depending upon the above-described factors, we estimate that the
average cost of leasehold improvements will range between $5,000 and $37,000.

H——Siens—and-ShopEquipmentSignage. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2
Business and will not incur costs related to signs-and-shep-equipment:

signage. The high estimate assumes you operate a Tier 1 Busmess and will incur costs related to

ta*}nterlor and exter10r 51gnage Your 1nvestment in sagﬂs—aﬂd—equﬁsmen{ 1gnag is
highly variable for your PIRTEK Center. The investment depends to a great extent on the

size and location of your proposed center, local labor costs, current prices charged by
equipment—suppliers, discretionary expenditures, inflation, financing costs and similar
factors beyond our or your control. In order to ensure uniform quality of products and
services throughout the PIRTEK system, you must purchase or lease signs and-equipment
that we have approved.

(8) Shop Equipment. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2 Business and includes
the purchase of shelving units and storage bins for the proper storage of inventory.

The high estimate assumes you operate a Tier 1 Business and will incur costs related to
shop equipment, retail counters, and other items necessary to operate. In order to ensure
uniform quality of products and services throughout the PIRTEK system, you must
purchase or lease equipment that we have approved.

The parties will determine the precise amount of any initial or periodic equipment
payments at the time of the transaction. The payments ordinarily are not refundable.
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Investment obligations beyond the initial cash outlay requirements will be necessary and
you may finance at your discretion. Market forces will determine loan repayment totals
and interest on borrowings will be determined by market forces at the time of any financing
transaction.

9)  -Mobile Sales & Service Units (MSSUs). We require that you operate a minimum of 2
MSSUs for a Tier 2 Business but recommend 3 MSSUs when you open your Tier 1
Business. The low estimate assumes you lease 2 MSSUs, and the high estimate assumes
you lease 3 MSSUs. You must purchase or lease the MSSUs from approved third-party
suppliers and outfit them with approved MSSU equipment purchased from us (except in
the limited instances when you pay cash for the MSSUs rather than lease the MSSUs from
approved third-party suppliers). If you lease the vehicles, you typically pay a down deposit
of up to 10% for two fully-outfitted vans.

(10)  9-Prepaid Rent and Security Deposit. You usually will be required to pay one-month
base rent as a security deposit to the landlord. The low estimate assumes you operate a
Tier 2 Business and are renting a storage facility. The high estimate assumes you operate
a Tier 1 Business and are renting a store front. We estimate that for a PIRTEK center
having 2,500 square feet the rental obligations will be approximately $8.00 - $16.00 or
more per square foot base rent per year, although in certain parts of the country the
security deposit and lease rates may be more. Leases also usually impose an obligation
toward maintenance costs, insurance charges, real estate taxes and special assessments,
utility charges, water and sewer charges, security charges, and other similar charges.

(11)  Opening Inventory. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2 Business and includes
the purchase of a standard Tier 2 Inventory Kit. The high estimate assumes you operate a
Tier 1 Business and includes the purchase of a standard Tier 1 Inventory Kit.

(12) B)Insurance Premiums. See Item 6 for additional information on insurance.

(13) @BH-Utility Deposits and Business Licenses. This amount includes utility deposits and
business licenses. Deposits are generally refundable, but license fees are not.

(14) 2 -Attorneys’ Fees. This amount is an estimate for attorneys’ fees in connection only

with your purchase of the franchise.

(15) Consumables. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2 Business and includes the
purchase of miscellaneous consumable products necessary for operations. The high
estimate assumes you operate a Tier 1 Business.

(16) Shop Supplies & Tools. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2 Business and
includes the purchase of various hand tools, saw blades, and other supplies necessary to
operate. The high estimate assumes you operate a Tier 1 Business and includes the tools
and supplies necessary to operate a Tier 1 Business.

(17) Safety Equipment. The low estimate assumes you operate a Tier 2 Business and includes
the purchase of safety equipment and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) necessary to
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operate. The high estimate assumes you operate a Tier 1 Business.

(18)  Freight/Delivery Charges. You must pay for the shipment and delivery of various items,
including inventory, equipment, shop supplies, retail counters, and other items Shipping
costs will vary per center and depend on a number of factors, including distance from the
fulfillment facility, transportation method, and desired level of speed.

(19) 3)-Additional Funds — 5 Months. This amount estimates your initial pre-opening and
start-up expenses not otherwise mentioned in the Table, including advertising, employee
wages, taxes, and telephone hook-up. The amounts are estimates based on our estimate of
average costs and market conditions prevailing as of the date of this Disclosure Document
and our 25 years of experience in the Business. We cannot guarantee that you will not
have additional expenses starting your Business. Your costs will depend on factors such
as how

much you follow our systems and procedures, your management skills and experience, your
business skills, local economic conditions, the local market for the PIRTEK Business, the
prevailing wage rate, competition, additional expenses you choose to put into the
business, and the sales level reached during the initial period.

(20) H4)-Total. This total is an estimate of your initial investment for a Tier 1 Business or a
Tier 2 Business, and is based upon our estimate of average costs and market conditions
prevailing as of the date of this Disclosure Document and our 25 years of experience.

If you convert your Tier 2 Business into a Tier 1 Business during the terms of the Franchise
Agreement, you will incur additional investment costs.—Seme—efthose—costs—eould-be

higher than the costs included above.

Estimated Initial Investment for Area Development Agreement. If you sign an Area
Development Agreement, your initial investment for your first Pirtek® Business is the
same as disclosed in the Item 7 chart. You also will pay a one-time Development Fee as
described in Item 5. This is the only additional initial investment under the Area
Development Agreement. Your initial investment for your second and subsequent Pirtek®
Business likely will be higher than the estimates listed in the chart for your Pirtek®
Business due to inflation and other economic factors that may vary over time.

Item8

RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

To help assure a uniform image and uniform quality of products and services in all PIRTEK
businesses, you must maintain and comply with our quality standards. Although you are not
required to purchase or lease real estate from us, you must improve and equip the building from
which you operate your Business in accordance with our then current approved design
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specifications and standards. In addition to meeting our design specifications and standards, it is
your responsibility to ensure that your building plans comply with the Americans with Disabilities
Act and all other federal, state and local laws. You also must use equipment (which includes
MSSUs and hardware and software for the Technology, a computerized record-keeping system),
signage, fixtures, furnishings, products, supplies and marketing and sales promotion materials that
meet our specifications and standards.

The Franchise Agreement requires you to sell or use only those products and services that
we have approved in writing. The purpose of this requirement is to ensure that all franchisees
adhere to the uniformity requirements and quality standards associated with PIRTEK businesses.
We are the only approved supplier of inventory products for resale to customers (“Inventory
Products™). You must purchase designated Inventory Products from us, except in the limited
instances to satisfy a customer’s immediate demands as described in the Manual. The Inventory
Products include hydraulic, industrial and specialty hoses, hose fittings, adapters and accessories.

We have the right to add to, supplement, or modify the Inventory Products that you are
required to purchase. In addition, we are the only approved supplier for the equipment necessary
to outfit the MSSUs and all non-inventory items that contain the PIRTEK Marks. As of the date
of this Disclosure Document, those items that contain the PIRTEK Marks include uniforms,
printed forms like customer invoices and stationery, and promotional items like caps and pins,
although this list may change during the term of the license granted in your Franchise

Agreement. We are also are-the only approved supplier for seme-of the-equipment-necessaryfor
the-Technology—ineludingthemuch of the proprietary and other software;medem;—printer-and
PrRLCr accessorics.

Upon request, we will periodically provide you with a list of approved suppliers for
fixtures, equipment and other non-inventory items. We may modify the standards and
specifications for these items from time to time. Except for designated Inventory Products,
proprietary software and eertain-hardware-compenents-and-other items that contain the PIRTEK
Marks, you may make written request for approval of a specific item of an additional qualified
vendor or supplier. We may grant our approval of the item if doing so will not create an
inordinate number of vendors/suppliers (usually not more than 2) of the item. In addition, each
vendor/supplier of a product must meet the following requirements: its item must comply with the
applicable specifications and/or standards; the vendor/supplier’s facilities must be adequate to
meet the needs of franchisees; and-the vendor/supplier and its facilities must be accessible to
periodic PIRTEK evaluation; and the proposed vendor must meet our Anti-Terrorism, Anti-
Corruption, Anti-Money Laundering or Restricted Persons and Activities standards. We may
charge the cost of evaluating a proposed new vendor/supplier and/or its item to you or the
vendor/supplier. We do not make these specifications and/or standards generally available to
franchisees or vendors/suppliers.

You must initiate the formal approval process to have a specific non-inventory item of an
additional vendor/supplier approved (other than those items that contain the PIRTEK Marks). As
part of this approval process, we may request the vendor/supplier to sign a confidentiality
agreement and submit to us a sample of its specific item. We or a suitable testing facility or
laboratory designated by us then will conduct tests and evaluations of the sample to determine
whether the product conforms with the specifications and/or standards. We will notify the
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vendor/supplier of our evaluation results by mail usually within 180-270 days after our receipt of
the sample. The vendor/supplier also may be required to sign an applicable supplier agreement.
We may revoke our appointment if the vendor/supplier is in violation of any of the terms of the
applicable supplier agreement or if we determine in our good faith but exclusive judgment that the
vendor/supplier is not meeting the standards and specifications that we have established for that
item or service.

In addition to purchasing approved products, you must install and use our designated
Technology. The Technology contains requlred hafdw%r%aﬂd—software components#eu which
you must acquire ¢k Ay , :
Our current Technology is CloudSulte Industrlal (SyteLlne) Wthh 1s an Enterprlse Resource
Planning (ERP) software package that all PIRTEK Centers will utilize to run their

business operations. SyteLine is created and sold by Infor, which is a multi-national enterprise
software company headquartered in New York, NY. You also must purchase and maintain
insurance in the amounts and types of coverage designated in the following paragraph or that we
designate periodically, and any other insurance required by law or any agreement related to the
franchise business. You may use only marketing and promotional materials that we have approved.

You must maintain in force general comprehensive liability insurance in a minimum
amount and with the type of coverage we designate from time to time and depending on market
conditions (currently, this is at least $3,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence).
Additionally, you must purchase and maintain in full force and effect business interruption
insurance for actual losses sustained. You also must maintain in force insurance covering operation
or maintenance of any building, equipment, MSSU motor vehicles that you own or lease in
connection with your Business and any other insurance required by local, state or federal law. We
may reasonably increase the minimum liability protection requirement annually and require
different or additional kinds of insurance to reflect inflation, changes in standards of liability,
higher damage awards in public or product liability litigation or other relevant changes in
circumstances. You must submit all insurance coverage for our approval at least 14 days before
you obtain possession of the Business premises. All insurance policies must name us as an
additional insured and must provide that we will receive 30 days’ prior written notice of
amendment, termination, expiration or cancellation of any policy. You must submit to us each year
a copy of the certificate or other evidence of the issuance, renewal or extension of each insurance
policy. If you fail to maintain the required insurance, we may obtain it on your behalf and you
must reimburse us for costs incurred and premiums paid.

You may use only marketing and promotional materials that we have approved.

During the 26232024 fiscal year, we derived revenue of $-34,199,84034,974,460 from the
sale of Inventory Products, Technology Fees and other items described in this Item 8, or 8483%
of our total revenues of $40,787:59942,325,828 as noted in our 20232024 audited financial
statements included as an Exhibit to the Disclosure Document. We derive revenue from the sale
of Inventory Products and other non- inventory items to you by charging more than our
wholesale purchase price from the manufacturers. You will pay the then-current price in effect at
the time for the Inventory Products and other non-inventory items. In many instances, the cost of
the Inventory Products and other non-inventory items to you may be higher than the cost of other
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hoses or other similar products on the market. We reserve the right to receive rebates and similar
payments from approved suppliers based on franchisee purchases. During the 26232024 fiscal
year, the revenue we derived for rebates was

$—1—8§%47 055 or -0030. 1% of our total revenues of $—40—187499—a4+he&g%m4%ef—ﬂ%esereba{es

ef—pfedﬂets—é&eeﬂry 223252828 We do not have any afﬁhates that sell or lease p_roducts or
services to franchisees-based-on-the-affiliates™ unaudited financial records.

From time to time, we or another vendor or supplier may be the only approved supplier for
non -Inventory Product items because of the lack of requests for approval of alternative vendors
or supplies. For those non-Inventory Product items, we or an affiliate may provide certain
administrative, technical, inspection, advisory and other services and data to certain suppliers in
return for a fee as a result of transactions with franchisees, and this fee may range from 0% to 20%
of the suppliers’ sales to franchisees. We may be able to occasionally negotiate with third-party
suppliers so that the suppliers may offer their products or services to franchisees at favorable or
discount prices.

We estimate that your purchase of equipment, products, supplies and marketing materials
from us or that meet our specifications and standards will represent approximately 65% to 75% or
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applicable law. In addition, we have the right to negotiate Strategic Account

arrangements, including pricing which will bind all Businesses providing services
to such Strategic Accounts. (Section 6.N of the Franchise Agreement).

Marketing Programs. You must pay Marketing Fees to us in an amount equal to 12 % to
3% of Gross Sales for marketing and promotion programs to promote the PIRTEK System and
products. All franchisees in a designated marketing area (“DMA”’) must contribute Marketing Fees
at the same rate, and we or our affiliates will contribute Marketing Fees at the same rate for
company or affiliate-owned centers in a particular DMA. We will notify you annually of the exact
percentage of Gross Sales for the monthly Marketing Fee, except for any year in which it will
remain unchanged. We may formulate, develop, and conduct marketing and promotion programs
in a form and media we determine to be appropriate. Media used for marketing programs includes
written publications and promotional pieces, and also may include television and radio in the
future. We reserve the right to use the Marketing Fees to reimburse us for all costs that we incur
related to the marketing and promotion programs, including the proportionate compensation of
employees who devote time and render service in the conduct, formulation, development,
production and administration of the marketing and promotion programs.

In addition to the Marketing Fees paid to us, you must spend at least an amount equal to 2
of your Marketing Fee on approved local marketing. You must submit all local marketing materials
to us for our approval prior to use. Your general conduct on any web site or other on- line
communication and specifically your use of the PIRTEK Marks or any advertising on a web site
(including any domain names) or other communications is subject to our approval. We will not
unreasonably withhold approval of any marketing materials that you propose to use, if your
materials are factually accurate and current, conform to the highest standards of ethical marketing,
and are in good condition and accurately depict the PIRTEK Marks. On or before January 31 of
each year, we may require you to submit to us an accounting of the monies you have spent for the
preceding year, together with copies/proof of all marketing. As of the date of this Disclosure
Document, there are no advertising cooperatives.

We have no obligations to spend any amount on marketing in the area or Territory where
you are located. For Marketing Fees not spent in any fiscal year, the excess will be carried over
for future use. The Marketing Fees are not held in a trust or escrow account. You have no property
rights of any kind with respect to the Marketing Fees, and we do not have any fiduciary obligations
to you or other franchisees regarding the Marketing Fees. In addition, from time to time, we may
loan money to assist in funding certain marketing programs, which money will be repaid out of
the Marketing Fees with interest to us. During our 20232024 fiscal year, use of the Marketing
Fees was as follows:

. hins. 39% Marketine Fund Rebate I 174 Media. 210 T Marketi
Suppert_ 2%
Sponsorships 26.6%
National Digital Advertising Programs 18.9%
Marketing Support 18.8%
Marketing Fund Rebate Program and Sunbelt Rebate 17.7%
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National Accounts Support and Advertising 8.1%

Creative Services and Social Media Management 5.6%
Marketing Software and Tools 2.2%
Conferences, Events, and Travel 1.5%
Charitable Partnerships 0.5%
Miscellaneous 0.1%
Contests 0.1%
Total 100%

Software Tools 3% Chartty 1% Trade Shows 4% Promotions

e b

Upon request, we will provide you with an unaudited financial report showing receipts and
disbursements of the Marketing Fees. The Marketing Fees will not be used for advertising
principally directed at the sale of franchises.

Technology Fee. You must install and use our designated computer system (“Computer
System”), which currently costs approximately $3,000 to $5,000 in addition to the Initial
Technology Start-up Fee noted below. This system may be modified from time to time in response
to business, operations and marketing conditions (Section 6.J of Franchise Agreement). In
connection with the Computer System/Technology (as defined below), you must sign a Computer
Software License Agreement, a copy of which is included as Appendix E to the Franchise
Agreement. As of December 31, 26232024, the Computer System includes the following
components:

(1) The PC compatible hardware component, printer and its accessories.

(2) The printer requirements include one PCL5 or PCL6 laser printer (network
capable).

3) The required proprietary and other software for the Computer System
(“Technology”), which consists of the proprietary SyteLine software system, which
is an enterprise class software package designed for use in distribution companies.
Syteline is built and deployed on Microsoft. NET technology platform and
comprises “Windows Server” as the base operating system, SSQL Server as the
underlying database, and a Microsoft. NET framework of core native Microsoft
technologies to deliver the application.

You will have remote access to the ComputerSystem/Technology by a PC that is linked to our
own computer server located in Florida. You will have access to your own database, which is
stored on our Franchise Service Center computer server. You will be able to access all of your
own business information, update existing information, produce reports, and view our Franchise
Service Center’s product inventory. We will have independent access to all of this information
for your center with no contractual limitation on our right to the information._You will not be
able to implement, use, or otherwise engage with Artificial Intelligence Sources in the operation
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of your business unless we have given our prior written consent. The term “Artificial Intelligence
Sources” means any resource, online or otherwise, that is for the purpose of gathering,
implementing, or otherwise using information from you using artificial intelligence technology,
including ChatGPT and other sources.

The Computer System/Technology is utilized by all PIRTEK Centers. SyteLine is created
and sold by Infor, which is a multi-national enterprise software company headquartered at 641
Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10011 tel.no. +1 646 336 1700.

You must pay an Initial Technology Start-up Fee of $8,000 to $10,000 and a monthly
Technology Fee between $660-$2,850. The annual cost of maintenance and support for the

Computer System/Technology will be shared on a pro-rated basis by you and all other
end-users in the PIRTEK system. We will provide the maintenance and support. In addition, you
are contractually obligated to pay the vendor for any upgrades or updates with no contractual
limitation on the frequency or cost of the obligation, including upgrades that may link a mobile
based computer on your MSSUs with the Computer System/Technology. Currently, we estimate
the total annual maintenance upgrade and support obligations to cost approximately $7,920 -
$34,200.

Site Selection. If you have not secured a location approved by us before you sign your
Development Agreement or Franchise Agreement, as applicable, you must do so and construct and
open the Service and Supply Center for business within 120-days from the date you sign the
Development Agreement and Franchise Agreement. You must construct the location in accordance
with our standards and the requirements in the Development Agreement and the Franchise
Agreement. If you fail to open the Service and Supply Center within 120-days from the date you
sign the Development Agreement, we reserve the right have the right to terminate or modify the
Development Agreement including the Development Area. Such failure to comply with the
Development Agreement may also result in a termination of your Franchise Agreement.

We do not select the site for your PIRTEK Service Center, although we must consent to
the site. The general site selection criteria you should consider includes traffic patterns, ease of
ingress and egress, size and cost of property, off-road area for loading and unloading, customer
parking, demographic surveys, types of businesses in the general vicinity and other similar factors.
You are solely responsible for locating a site that meets our standards and criteria and that is
acceptable to us. We generally will respond within 30 days of your request for approval of a
proposed site. If we do not approve the site you propose, we will permit you to examine alternative
search areas for your site. The Franchise Agreement does not have any provision that addresses
termination if you do not select a site within a prescribed time period, although your failure to
open the Business within 120 days after signing the Franchise Agreement constitutes a default for
which may terminate the agreement after 30 days if you fail open the Business. Our identification
of, consent to, or acceptance of a site for a PIRTEK Business does not constitute a guarantee,
recommendation, assurance or endorsement as to the success of the site of your Business.

From time to time you may be required to modernize, refurbish and replace buildings
equipment, signage, display areas, furnishings and grounds in order to conform to our standards.
The maximum amount that you will be required to spend on any such modernization, refurbishing
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manner that reflects the customer service standards of the System. You are, and will
remain, the sole employer of your employees at all times, including during all training programs,
and you are solely responsible for all employment decisions and actions related to your
employees. You are solely responsible for ensuring that your employees receive adequate
training.

Operations Manual. To help protect our reputation and goodwill and to maintain uniform
operating standards under the Marks and Business, you must conduct your Business in accordance
with the required standards and procedures contained in our Operations Manual and any other
manuals created by us for, or approved for, use in the operation of your Business (collectively the
“Manual”). We will provide you with access to the Manual during the term of your franchise. The
current Manual table of contents is included in this Disclosure Document as Exhibit 11. As of the
date of this Disclosure Document the Manual consists of +61+174 pages.

Item12

TERRITORY

The disclosures in this Item 12 apply to both the Tier 1 Business and Tier 2 Business
franchises, unless stated otherwise.

Development Agreement

If we grant you the right to develop, open and operate multiple Service and Supply Centers
under a Development Agreement, when you sign the Development Agreement, we will grant you
the exclusive right to develop Centers in a mutually agreed upon geographic area (the
“Development Area”). The size of the Development Area may range from a portion or all of a city,
county, metropolitan area, or marketing area, depending on a number of factors, including but not
limited to demographics and your financial and management resources. The Development Area
will be described in the Development Agreement by specific geographic boundaries, such as
latitude and longitude, specified counties, or a description of municipal boundaries. We, and/or
our affiliates, will have the right to operate or franchise to other parties the right to operate and
provide hose assembly orders for customers within the Development Area with requests that
Developer would otherwise not have the capacity to handle due to resources, supply, pricing and/or
potential margin, technical ability, or engineering skill as well as for national, regional or other
accounts, referred to as Strategic Accounts, which Franchisor determines will benefit the PIRTEK
System. Franchisor shall retain similar rights within the Territory defined in any Franchise
Agreement signed under the Development Agreement.

Each Service and Supply Center you are obligated to develop and open under your
Development Agreement is to be located at a location within your Development Area that has been
approved by us. You will sign a Franchise Agreement for each Center on the date in the

Development Schedule to the Development Agreement. When you sign the Franchise Agreement,
we will grant you a Territory. Please refer to the disclosures below under the heading “Franchise
Agreement.”
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the terms of each Franchise Agreement you sign under the Development Agreement. If
you default on the terms of the Development Agreement or your Franchise Agreements, we may,
in addition to our other available remedies, terminate the Development Agreement, modify,
reduce, and/or accelerate the Development Schedule, or terminate, modify, and/or reduce the
Development Area, without your consent.

Only a Development Agreement grants the right to acquire additional franchises within a
defined area. Under your Franchise Agreement, you do not receive an option, right of first refusal,
or other right to acquire additional franchises.

Franchise Agreement

You are granted the right to operate your Business within a designated Territory, subject
to certain limitations described below. As a result, you will not receive an exclusive territory. You
may face competition from other franchisees, from other outlets we or our affiliates may operate,
or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we or our affiliates control,
operate or franchise. We do, however provide you with Territory protections as described below
and in the Franchise Agreement.

The method used to describe territorial boundaries of franchises generally will be one or a
combination of the following: county lines, highways, streets, zip codes or waterways. There is no
minimum size territory that the franchisee will receive.

Territory Performance Standards

In exchange for granting you the rights within your Territory, we expect and require you
to meet minimum performance standards in your Territory as follows (“Territory Performance
Standards™). For the 26242025 calendar year, the Territory Performance Standards for Tier 1
Business and Tier 2 Business franchisees will include each of the following components: (i) a
minimum number of MSSU’s that you will be required to operate in the Territory, as we
reasonably deem necessary in accordance with Section 5-ESF of the Franchise Agreement after
meeting with you at a location we designate to discuss the overall performance of your Business
(you and we agree that we can adjust the minimum number of MSSU’s during the term of the
Agreement, although for new franchisees and new Centers, we require that you operate a
minimum of 2 MSSUs when you open your Business); and (ii) an annual sales growth of 3% -
3'2% for your Business on a year to year basis, although that sales growth requirement will not
be used as a Territory Performance Standard for any year that 80% of our then-current Tier 1
Business in operation more than 12 months and for the full 12 month period do not achieve the
annual sales growth requirement. We will designate the specific percentage between 3% and
3'2% each year, with the percentage to remain unchanged from the prior year, unless we notify
franchisees in writing prior to December 31.

+-For 20242025, the annual sales growth percentage is 3% and the minimum number of
MSSU’s will be the same number the franchisee operated in 20232024 (for new Centers the
number of required MSSU’s is two).

If you do not meet the Territory Performance Standards, you will be subject to the
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put some limitations on Strategic Accounts that we may develop for the PIRTEK system; (ii)
provide hose assembly orders for customers with requests that franchisees would otherwise not

have the capacity to handle due to resources, supply, pricing and/or potential margin,
technical ability, or engineering skill, while also being a production support arm when
franchisees secure a large job{eurrentlytheseservices provided-by-OEM-as-deseribedinttem1);
and (iii) develop and operate and to license others to develop and operate the PIRTEK business
at any location outside your Territory. Strategic Accounts are national, regional or other accounts
we believe will benefit the system as further described in the Franchise Agreement or the
Manuals, and Strategic Accounts may involve marketing in your Territory. If you agree to
participate in servicing a Strategic Account, you must do so on the terms we specify, which terms
may include, but may not be limited to, the provision of certain insurance, equipment, products
and services, and the offer of services at prices not to exceed the maximum prices specified. Your
failure to properly service a Strategic Account in your Territory may result in us authorizing
another franchisee or us to service that Strategic Account.

We will not market the PIRTEK business within your Territory, except in the case where
the marketing is part of the marketing programs described in Item 11, or is contained in a general
pubhcatlon (or medla) with general distribution (or broadcast) within and out51de the Terrltory—er

aﬂd—uem—k As further addressed in our current terrltory 1nfr1ngement policy, it is a Vlolat10n of
another PIRTEK franchisee’s franchise agreement if that franchisee makes sales or service calls
in your Territory without your permission or our permission as part of any Strategic Account
business if you are unwilling or unable to satisfactorily service the Strategic Account, although
(1) a franchisee’s marketing in its territory may reach your Territory if contained in a general
publication (or media) like a regional newspaper with general distribution (or broadcast) within
his territory/promotional zone and your Territory or (ii) a franchisee or its team in limited
instances may make a sales call in your Territory if the service call will be done outside your
Territory. The terms and conditions applicable to Strategic Accounts will be listed in the Manual
or other written communications.

We are not required to pay you if we exercise any of the rights specified above in the
foregoing paragraphs inside your Territory (including for soliciting or accepting orders in your
Territory).

We retain all rights that are not expressly granted to you under the Franchise Agreement.
We may, without compensation to any franchisee, and without granting you any rights, establish
and/or license others to establish franchised or company-owned or affiliate-owned businesses at
any location outside your Territory regardless of the proximity of such businesses to your
Territory, unless you sign a Development Agreement. If you sign a Development Agreement, you
will be granted the territorial rights described above. We may also merge with, acquire or become
associated with any businesses of any kind (including those in competition with PIRTEK
businesses) under other systems or other marks. Such businesses may convert to or operate under
the Marks and may sell products and services that are the same as the products and services offered
from your business and may be located anywhere inside or outside of your Territory. We also have
the right to sell for ourselves or license others to sell through franchised businesses or any other
method of distribution (including the internet), both inside and outside your Territory, products
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PIRTEK (with design)

(Mod’
.. PIRTEK 2,192,554 | September 29, 1998

Cog (design only)

(Add)

'O

2,201,392 November 3, 1998

'.0

(service mark)
(Add)l p’mx 2,726,273 June 17, 2003

We are the owners of the Marks and related registrations. All required renewal and

affidavit filings have been made if necessary.

There are no currently effective determinations of the Patent and Trademark Office,
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any state, or any court, or any
pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding, or any pending material litigation,
involving the Marks. We know of no superior prior rights or infringing uses that could materially
affect your use of the Marks in the United States.

Appendix C to your Franchise Agreement identifies the Marks that you are licensed to use.
Appendix C includes the PIRTEK service marks identified above and other Marks. We have the
right to change Appendix C from time to time. You may use the Marks only according to the
Franchise Agreement and the Manual. You may not use, or permit the use of, any trademarks,
trade names or service marks in operating the PIRTEK Business except the Marks or except as we
otherwise direct in writing. You may use the Marks only with those products and services that we
specify and only in the form and manner we specify in writing. You must comply with all
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trademark, trade name and service mark notice marking requirements. You may use the Marks
only in association with products and services we approve and that meet our standards or
requirements for quality, mode and condition of storage, production, preparation and sale, and
portion and packaging. Your use of the Marks and any related goodwill is to our exclusive benefit,
and you retain no rights in or to the Marks. You retain no rights to use the Marks upon termination
of the Franchise Agreement. You are not permitted to make any changes or substitutions of any
kind in or to the use of the Marks unless we direct in writing.

We are not required to protect you against infringement or unfair competition claims
arising out of your use of the Marks, or to participate in your defense or indemnify you. We reserve
the right to control any litigation related to the Marks and will have the sole right to decide to
pursue or settle any infringement actions related to the Marks. You must notify us promptly of any
infringement or unauthorized use of the Marks of which you become aware and to cooperate with
any action that we undertake. If we determine that a trademark infringement action requires
changes or substitutions to the Marks, you must make such changes or substitutions at your own
expense.

hasno-license-to-use-the Marks-inall-eranypart-of the United States;We are also the owners of
the Marks in Canada and Mexico-and-we-agreed-that, but we have no right to use or license use
of the Marks outside the United States, Canada and Mexico.

nde ho dem A 1
C aC d

A
we

onmen Ao
S S
5

Me-havea wledeed 3 o o at-whileWhile we
own the Marks in Mexico, the trademark registrations in Mexico remain pending and are yet to be
substantially examined by Instituto Mexicano de la Propiedad Industrial.

Item14

PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no registered patents, copyrights or pending patent applications that are material
to the franchise, although we do claim copyright ownership and protection for our PIRTEK
Franchise Agreement, Manual and for various sales promotional and other materials published
from time to time.

There are no currently effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of
Congress), United States Patent and Trademark Office, Board of Patent Appeals and Interferences,
or any court, or any pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding or any pending
material litigation involving any patents or copyrights. There are currently no agreements in effect
that significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of any patents or copyrights in any
manner material to the franchise. There are no infringing uses actually known to us that could
materially affect your use of the patents or copyrights.

We are not obligated to protect you against infringement or unfair competition claims
arising out of your use of any patents or copyrights, or to participate in your defense or indemnify
you. We reserve the right to control any litigation related to any patents and copyrights and we
have the sole right to decide to pursue or settle any infringement actions related to the patents or
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Item15

OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

If you are an individual, you must directly supervise and manage your Business. If you are
a corporation, partnership or other business entity, or if more than individual owns the franchise,
you must designate in writing to us one individual who owns at least 25% of the franchisee (the
“Controlling Owner”). The Controlling Owner must actively direct your affairs relating to the
PIRTEK Business and is responsible for overseeing the general management of the day-to-day

operations of the PIRTEK Business. The Controlling Owner will be deemed to have
authority to sign on your behalf on all contracts and commercial accounts. You also must
designate an individual who personally invests his or her full time and attention and devotes his
or her best efforts to the on-premises general management of the day-to-day operations of the
PIRTEK Business (the “Designated Manager”), completes our full training program to our
satisfaction prior to beginning the duties of the Designated Manager, and does not participate in
the active operation or management of any business other than the PIRTEK Business. Any
individual owner, Controlling Owner and Designated Manager must complete our training
program as noted in Item
11. A Controlling Owner may serve in the role of Designated Manager. If a different individual
than the Controlling Owner, the Designated Manager need not have an ownership interest in the
franchisee entity; however, he or she may be required to sign a written agreement maintaining
confidentiality of proprietary information.

Each individual who directly or indirectly owns a 10% or greater interest in a Franchisee
must sign the personal undertaking and guarantee attached to the Franchise Agreement. These
OwnersThe spouse of an owner must sign the personal undertaking and guarantee attached to the
Franchise Agreement if the spouse directly owns or indirectly owns (i.e. through a trust, or
ownership interest in a partnership, corporation, limited liability company or the like) a 10% or
greater interest in Franchisee. The Owners described in this paragraph agree to discharge all
obligations of the franchisee under the Franchise Agreement and are bound by all its terms and
conditions, including maintaining confidentiality of proprietary information and abiding by the
noncompete covenants described in Item 17.

Item16

RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

We require you to offer and sell only those products and services that we have approved
(see Items 8 and 9). You must offer all products and services that we require. There are no limits
on our right to make modifications to the approved products and services from time to time as set
forth in the Manual or otherwise in writing. Any failure to comply with these standards may result
in termination of your Franchise Agreement (see Item 17).

You may not use your place of Business, or any MSSU used in connection with your
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Agreement
patty : . RS .3'
W € . Eﬁ : .
W approve a transferee.

Non-competition
covenants during
the term of the
franchise

Section 10.C

No direct or indirect involvement in the
operation of any business selling products
and services similar to those sold by your
PIRTEK Business. (Subject to state law.)

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is
terminated or

Section 10.C

No competing business for 2 years within the
Territory or 25 miles of Territory or the
territory of another PIRTEK center (subject
to state law).

expires

Modification of the | Section 16.B No modifications generally, but we may

agreement change Manual and list of Marks.

Integration/ merger | Section 16.B Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement

clause are binding (subject to state law). Any
representations or promises made outside the
Disclosure  Document and Franchise
Agreement may not be enforceable.

Dispute resolution | Section 13.A Except for certain claims, all disputes must

by arbitration or be arbitrated at a suitable location that is

mediation within 10 miles from our principal business

address (which is currently in Rockledge,
Florida) when the arbitration demand is filed

(subject to state law).

Choice of forum

Section 16.1

Subject to Section 13A, litigation must be
brought in the state or federal court of-

e
| court I | (subi
Ferv)
Section in
Provision Franchise Summary
Agreement

PIRTFEKEDD—2024
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general jurisdiction located closest to where
we have our principal business address
(which is currently in Rockledge, Florida)
when the action is commenced (subject to
state law).

w. Choice of law Section 16.1 Florida law applies (subject to state law).

Certain states require franchisors to make additional disclosures related to the information
contained in this Disclosure Document. If applicable, these additional disclosures will be furnished
to you immediately following Item 23 and in Exhibit 3 to this Disclosure Document.
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Remainder of the page intentionally blank.

This table lists certain important provisions of the Area-Development Agreement
and related agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to
this disclosure document.

Section in the

Provision Development Summary
Agreement
a. Length of the Section 4.1 The term expires on the last opening date on
development rights term the schedule for development of the
franchises.
b. Renewal or Not applicable Not applicable
extension of the term
C. Requirements for | Not applicable Not applicable
developer to renew or
extend
d. Termination by Not applicable Not applicable
developer
e. Termination by Not applicable Not applicable
franchisor without cause
f. Termination by Section 7 We may terminate the Development
franchisor with cause Agreement only if you default.
g. “Cause” defined- Section 7.2 You can avoid termination of the
curable defaults Development Agreement if you cure a

default arising from your failure to comply
with mandatory specifications in the
Development Agreement within 30 days of
receiving our notice of termination.
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Item19

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the Disclosure
Document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be
given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering
buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by
providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular
circumstances.

A. Reports on Gross Sales for the Period January 1, 20232024 to December 31, 26232024

The sales figures listed below include average and median Gross Sales derived from
historical operating results of the franchised businesses indicated for the time periods covered. We
obtained these sales figures from information provided to us by our franchisees for the period from
January 1, 26232024 through December 31, 26232024 (the “Full 20232024 Reporting Period”).

On December 31, 20232024, there were +4+162 U.S. PIRTEK Franchised Centers open
and +H-6138 were in continuous operation during the entire calendar year. The analysis set forth
below is based on the average yearly gross sales and median sales for those ++6138 PIRTEK
Centers for 26232024. Of the +1+6138 PIRTEK Centers open and in continuous operation as of
December 31, 2023,-93were2024, 102 were Tier 1 Centers and 2336 were Tier 2 Centers. The
information provided in Tables 1 and 2 does not include data from 2524 franchised businesses
that opened during the year 20232024 and therefore were not in operation for the Full 26232024
Reporting Period. No U.S. franchises opened and closed during the 12 month period of the Full
20232024 Reporting Period.

The following tables refer to “Gross Sales.” “Gross Sales” includes cash and credit sales
as well as any goods or services received by the franchisee in exchange for goods and services

sold at the PIRTEK Center. “Gross Sales” does not include sales or use taxes.

TABLE 1

I al
Centers Operating for the Entire 2024 Calendar Year

Table 1 provides Gross Sales for all 2024 Full Year Operational Centers, with a separate
breakdown for Tier 1 Centers and Tier 2 Centers.

# and % of Centers that .
Type of Center Aumber of Average met or exceeded the Median Gross
Centers Gross Sales " averase (Note 1) Sales
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All Franchised 138 $1,072,875 61/44% $937,025
Centers
# and % of Centers that .

Type of Center Aumber of Average met or exceeded the Median Gross
Centers Gross Sales = —————— Sales
_ _— avera te 1 =

Tier 1 Centers 102 $1,286,739 39/38% $1,133,899

Tier 2 Centers 36 $466,926 13/36% $392,186

Note 1. The highest and lowest reported Gross Sales for the 138 operational PIRTEK Centers
included in the average were $3.471,639 and $52,035, respectively. The highest and lowest
reported Gross Sales for the 102 Tier 1 PIRTEK Centers included in the average were $3.,471,639
and $297,980, respectively. The highest and lowest reported Gross Sales for the 36 Tier 2 PIRTEK
Centers included in the average were $1,392,577 and $52,035, respectively.

TABLE 2

Gross Sales by “Time Period”
for the Entire 2024 Calendar Year

Table 2 provides Gross Sales for all 2024 Full Year Operational Centers separated by the number
of years each Center has been in operation.

# of Full | Number | Average Number & | Number &
Calendar of Gross High Median Low % Above % Below
Years Centers Sales Average Average
5+* 80 $1,378,459 | $3,471,639 | $1,231,883 | $265,577 35/44% 45/56%
34 24 $738,576 | $1,283,883 | $729,077 | $163,288 12/50% 12/50%
1-2 34 $589,829 | $1,755,729 | $498.980 $52,035 14/41% 20/59%

* The highest number of years of operation by a franchisee in this category is 26 years.

B.

Reports on Gross Sales for the Period January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

The sales figures listed below include average and median Gross Sales derived from
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historical operating results of the franchised businesses indicated for the time periods covered. We
obtained these sales figures from information provided to us by our franchisees for the period from
January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 (the “Full 2023 Reporting Period”™).

On December 31, 2023, there were 141 PIRTEK Centers open and 116 were in continuous
operation during the entire calendar year. The information set forth below is based on the average
yearly gross sales and median sales for those 116 PIRTEK Centers for 2023 (the “2023 Full Year
Operational Centers”). The information provided in Tables 3 and 4 does not include data from 25
franchised businesses that opened during the year 2023 and therefore were not in operation for the
Full 2023 Reporting Period. One business opened and closed during the 12 month period of the
Full 2023 Reporting Period.

Of the 116 PIRTEK Centers open and in continuous operation as of December 31, 2023,
93 were Tier 1 Centers and 23 were Tier 2 Centers.

The following tables refer to “Gross Sales.” “Gross Sales” includes cash and credit sales
as well as any goods or services received by the franchisee in exchange for goods and services
sold at the PIRTEK Center. “Gross Sales” does not include sales or use taxes.

TABLE 13

Systemwide Gross Sales
Centers Operating for the Entire 2023 Calendar Year

Table 13 provides Gross Sales for all 2623F4H2023 Full Year Operational Centers, with a
separate breakdown for Tier 1 Centers and Tier 2 Centers.

(1)
Type of Number of Average #and % of Centers Median Gross
Center Centers Gross that met or exceeded Sales
Sales the average (Note 1)
All
1 o
grezﬁzlrlslsed 116 §1.159.3871 5251/4544% $l—,9¥4,—7—2—3120561%
159,382 =
1 o
Tier 1 Centers 93 $1.327.5781 4241/4544% $1,219,934
318,314
1 [
Tier 2 Centers 23 $479.31551 9/39% $385;432466,834
6,741

Note 1. The highest and lowest reported Gross Sales for the 116 operational PIRTEK Centers
included in the average were $2,888,279 and $42,H8&,—+respeetfully158.,464, respectively. The
highest and lowest reported Gross Sales for the 93 Tier 1 PIRTEK Centers included in the
average were $2,888,279 and $176,026, respectively. The highest and lowest reported Gross Sales
for the 23 Tier 2 PIRTEK Centers included in the average were $1,799,148 and $42,11-8158,464,
respectively.
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Gross Sales by “Time Period”

TABLE 4

for the Entire 2023 Calendar Year

Table 24 provides Gross Sales for all 2023 Full Year Operational Centers separated by the number
of years each Center has been in operation.

# of Full | Number | Average Ntl&n:;)er Ntl&n:;)er
Calendar of Gross High Median Low ° °
Above Below
Years Centers Sales
Average | Average
5+ 73 $H44-7.2051. $2,888,279 ($H333.2721,| $176,026 |3332/4544| 4041/5556
411,222 305,927 % %
3-4 19 $848:4298 | $1,436,216 | $925;6307 | $42;HL816| +09/5347 |910/4753%
76,327 18,065 6,109 %
1-2 24 $621,3676 | $1,799,148 | $574,880 | $158,464 [ 9/38% 15/63%
17,451

* The highest number of years of operation by a franchisee in this category is 25 years.

C.B- Reports on Gross SalesProfit for the Period January 1, 20222024 to December 31, 2024

The salesGross Profit figures listed below include average and median Gross SalesProfit
derived from historical operating results of the franchised businesses indicated for the time
periods covered. We obtained these sales—figures from information provided to us by our
franchisees for the period from January 1, 26222024 through December 31, 26222024 (the “Full
20222024 Reporting Period”).

On December 31, 20222024, there were +19162 U.S. PIRTEK Franchised Centers open
and +04138 were in continuous operation during the entire calendar year. The informationanalysis
set forth below is based on the average yearly gross salesprofit and median salesgross profit for

those +84138 PIRTEK Centers for 2022 (the—~2022FulYear Operational2024. Of the 138

PIRTEK Centers™} open and in continuous operation as of December 31, 2024, 102 were Tier 1
Centers and 36 were Tier 2 Centers. The information provided in Tables 35 and 46 does not

include data from 1224 franchised businesses that opened during the year 20222024 and
therefore were not in operation for the Full 20222024 Reporting Period. One-businessNo U.S.

franchises opened and closed during the 12-month period of the Full 26222024 Reporting Period.
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TABLE 4
The following tables refer to “Gross Profit.” “Gross Profit” is defined as Gross Sales minus
Cost of Goods Sold. “Gross Sales” includes cash and credit sales as well as any goods or services
received by the franchisee in exchange for goods and services sold at the PIRTEK Center.

‘Gross sales” does not include sales or use taxes. Cost of Goods Sold reported to us by the

franchisees only includes the cost of product sold. No other allocations of Labor or Direct Cost are
considered Cost of Goods Sold.
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TABLE S

Gross Profit
Centers Operating for the Entire 2024 Calendar Year

Table 5 provides Gross Profit for all 2024 Full Year Operational Centers, with a separate
breakdown for Tier 1 Centers and Tier 2 Centers.

1)
Type of Number of Average #and % of Cenfers Median Gross
- Gross that met or exceeded = —
Center Centers — — ———— Profit
= = Profit the average (Note 1) —
All
Franchised 138 $800,980 57/41% $692,033
Centers
Tier 1 0
Centers 102 $955,514 42/41% $865,910
e 36 $363,132 13/36% $317,855
Centers = ~2L= A0

Note 1. The highest and lowest reported Gross Profit for the 138 operational PIRTEK
Centers included in the average were $2.607.093 and $46.015. respectively. The highest and

lowest reported Gross Profit for the 102 Tier 1 PIRTEK Centers included in the average were
2.607.093 and $166.214, respectively. The highest and lowest reported Gross Profit for the 36

Tier 2 PIRTEK Centers included in the average were $1,032,847 and $46,015, respectively.
TABLE 6

Gross Profit by “Time Period”
for the Entire 2024 Calendar Year

Table 6 provides Gross Profit for all 2024 Full Year Operational Centers separated by the number
of years each Center has been in operation.

4 of Full | Number | Avera Nun:)ber Nun:)ber
Calendar of Gross High Median Low S e
Above Below

Years nter Profit — ——
e — Average | Average
5+* 80 $1,026,166 | $2,607,093 | $956,079 | $155,562 | 33/41% 47/59%
34 24 $556,299 $947,919 $588,884 | $127,690 | 13/54% 11/46%
1-2 34 $443,845 | $1,106,963 | $366,480 | $46,015 14/41% 20/59%
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TABLE 5
* The highest number of years of operation by a franchisee in this category is 26 years.
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D._Reports on Gross Profit for th anuary 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

The Gross Profit figures listed below include average and median Gross Profit derived
from historical operating results of the franchised businesses indicated for the time periods
covered. We obtained these figures from information provided to us by our franchisees for the
period from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 (the “Full 2024 Reporting Period”).

On December 31, 2023, there were 141 U.S. PIRTEK Franchised Centers open and 116
were in continuous operation during the entire calendar year. The analysis set forth below is based
on the average yearly gross profit and median gross profit for those 116 PIRTEK Centers for 2023.
Of the 116 PIRTEK Centers open and in continuous operation as of December 31, 2023, 93 were
Tier 1 Centers and 23 were Tier 2 Centers. The information provided in Tables 7 and 8 does not
include data from 25 franchised businesses that opened during the year 2023 and therefore were
not in operation for the Full 2023 Reporting Period. No U.S. franchises opened and closed during
the 12-month period of the Full 2023 Reporting Period.

The following tables refer to “Gross Sates=Profit.” “Gross Profit” is defined as Gross Sales
minus Cost of Goods Sold. “Gross Sales” includes cash and credit sales as well as any goods or
services received by the franchisee in exchange for goods and services sold at the PIRTEK
Center. “Gross Salessales” does not include sales or use taxes._Cost of Goods Sold reported to

us by the franchisees only includes the cost of product sold. No other allocations of Labor or
Direct Cost are considered Cost of Goods Sold.

TABLE 37

Systemwide-Gross SalesProfit
Centers Operating for the Entire 20222023 Calendar Year

Table 37 provides Gross SalesProfit for all 26222023 Full Year Operational Centers, with
a separate breakdown for Tier 1 Centers and Tier 2 Centers.

(1)

Type of Number of | Average Gross ti::lief)o(:'fe(;:::(eizz Median Gross

Center Centers SalesProfi SalesProfi
¢ the average (Note 1) ¢
All Franchised

Centers 104116 | $H18+H138884,061 4549/-4342% $14:106,340810,8
25

Tier 1 Centers 7893 | $1396,6751,003.,46 3240/-4443% $4,239,687916.3
4 30

Tier 2 Centers 2623 $554.329401,259 +H9/4239% $492.077344,615
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TABLFE S

Operational-Cen nehad n-the-averagewere—$2; and-$21.505 respectively. The
highest and lowest reported Gross Sales—for—the—78Profit for the 116 operational PIRTEK
Centers included in the average were $2,189,753 and $53.413, respectfully. The highest and
lowest reported Gross Profit for the 93 Tier 1 PIRTEK Centers included in the average were

$2,7514922,189,753 and $44,238149,497, respectively. The highest and lowest reported Gross
SalesProfit for the 2623 Tier 2 PIRTEK Centers included in the average were
$4+395,2261,383,930 and $21+,50553.413, respectively.

TABLE 48

Gross SalesProfit by “Time
Period” for the Entire 20222023
Calendar Year

Table 48 provides Gross SalesProfit for all 20222023 Full Year Operational Centers separated by
the number of years each Center has been in operation.

Number | Numbe-
& % rNumbe
Above r& %

Average | Below

Number | Average
# of Full of Gross High Median Low
Calenda Centers SalesP

rCalendar rofit Averag

Years eAverag
e

S 6673 |$1:4734761,|$2.751.4922 | $1.371.796 | $21.50514|3034/4547| 3639/5553

o
=X

071,692 189,753 998,442 9,497

3-4 1419 | $801.2826 |$1.315.2471,| $736.2286 |$211.3745|79/5047% |710/5053%
54,738 197,497 12,098 3,413

1-2 24 | $599.6174 |$1.395.2261,| $552.9544 |$41.23812|1511/6346[913/3854%
94,898 383,930 53,602 4,704 %

* The highest number of years of operation by a franchisee in this category is 2526 years.

Some outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is
no assurance you’ll earn as much.

Written substantiation for these financial performance representations will be made
available to a prospective franchisee upon reasonable request.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any
financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives
to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing
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TK8105

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1

Systemwide Outlet Summary

For Years 20212022 to 20232024"

Start of the Year| the End of the Change
Sear
Year
Franchised Outlets 20212022 90106 Qg 45413
20222023 105119 119141 414422
20232024 H9141 141162 +22+21
Compan 2024 7 3 -4
&L
Owned
Company-Owned 2022 3 0 -3
2023 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0
Total Outlets 11
20212022 97109 1088 +H+12
14
20222023 108119 1191 +H+22
16
20232024 H9141 1412 +22421

*Table 1: All numbers are as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. The numbers are for PIRTEK

franchisees and company- owned/affiliate locations in the United States and include Tier 1 and

Tier 2 franchises.

Table No. 2

Transfers of Qutlets From Franchisees to New Owners (Other than the Franchisor)
For Years 20212022 to 20232024*

State

Year

Number of Transfers

PIRTFEKEDD—2024
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Celorade 262} 0
Colorado 2022 1

Hlorida 20212024 0

?
:
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State Year Number of Transfers
Florida 2022 2
2023 0
2024 2
Missouri 20212022 0
2023 2
2024 1
North Carolina 2022 0
2023 20
| 20212024 02
Ohio 2022 1
2023 0
Pennsyhanta 20212024 0
Pennsylvania 2022 1
2023 0
2024 0
Tennessee 2022 0
2023 0
Texas 20212024 31
Texas 2022 5
2023 0
e 20212024 03
Virginia 2022 2
2023 0
W seonst 20212024 0
Wisconsin 2022 0
2023 1
Total 20212024 50
Total 2022 12
2023 3
2024 10

* Table 2. All numbers are as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. The numbers are for
PIRTEK franchisees in the United States. States not listed had no transfer activity during the

relevant time period.
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Table No. 3

Status of Franchised Outlets For

Years 20212022 to 20232024"

Outlet . Ceased Outle
Reacqui .
State Year Outlets 0
SQutlets | Opened o gperat,e
at Start ; _ N ot
of Year mﬂl by SOperations [ ts at
Franchisor L Other End of
Reasons the-
Sear
year
2621+ 2 1 5 5 .
Adabama
Alabama 2022 |3 0 0 - g :
2023 3 1 0 . ; ;
20212 24 0 0 - ¢ 2
Arizona 024
Arizona 2022 |1 0 0 - _ :
2023 1 1 Q . ; :
20212( 82 0 0 ¥ v 2
; . 24
California | 2
California 2022 |7 0 2 - _ :
2023 7 2 0 ; ¥ !

20212 | 39 01 1 0 0 39
Colorad 024
Colorado 2022 |3 0 0 0 0 3
2023 |3 1 0 0 0 4
20212 | 104 10 0 -40 0 154
. 24
Elorida 024
Florida 2022 | 15 13 0 20 0 18
2023 | 18 0 0 0 02 16
20212 | 616 0 0 0 0 616
~ 024
Georeta
Georgia 2022 |6 2 0 0 0 8
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* Table 3. All numbers are as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. The numbers are for PIRTEK franchisees in

2023 |8 4 0 0 0 12
M (2 (1|0 o0 0 : E
20212 | 60 0 0 0 0 60

. . 022

Hhinosldahe )3 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 |0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Ilinois 2022 |6 0 0 0 0 6
2023 |6 0 0 0 0 6
20212 | 26 0 0 0 0 26

Indiana 024

Indiana 2022 |2 0 0 0 0 2
2023 |2 2 0 0 0 4
20212 | 04 0 0 0 0 04

Towa 024

Iowa 2022 |0 1 0 0 0 1
2023 |1 0 0 0 0 1
20212 | 61 0 0 0 0 01
024

Ientucky ==

the United States. If multiple events occurred affecting an outlet, this table shows the event that occurred last in

time. States not listed had no franchised activity to report during the relevant time period.
. Outlets
Qutlets at Reacquired P
State Year | Startof mumm i | Terminations RN:""— | hy mﬁ
Year SEE | Franchisor N
Year
2022 0 1 0 0 0 1
Kentucky 2023 1 1 0 0 0 2
20212 12 0 0 0 0 12
.. 024
Loutstana
2022 1 1 2
Louisiana 2023 01 23
20212 01 23
Maryland 024
2022 0 2
Maryland 2023
Massachusetts | 2021 ) 10
024
2022 2 0
Massachusetts 2023 2 0
20212 62 01 63

PIRTEK FDD —
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Michigan 024
2022 0
Michigan 2023 1
20212 37 02 39
NMinnesota 024
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Minnesota 2023 3 1 0 0 0 0 p
024
2022 4 0 0 4
Mi ri 2023 4 0 0 4
20212 04 0 0 0 0 0 04
Nevada 024
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 )
Nevada 2023 0 ]
20212 21 0 21
New Jersey 024
2022 2 0 0 >
New Jersey 2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
292—1'; 9; ‘H_l 0 0 0 0 _l_;
) 024
New-Mexico
2022 1 0 1 0 0 0 0
New Mexico 2023
20212 0
INewYork 024
2022 0 1 0 0 0 ) ’
New York 2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 "
North-Carolina | 20217 4 1 0 0 0 0 )
024
North 2022 5 3 1 0 0 0
Carolina 2023 7 0 10 0 0 o1
. Ceased Qutlets
Qutlefsat Reacquired . Quilets.
State Year | Startof | QS | o inations |  DeI= by | Queration/ | atEnd
Opened Renewal . Other of the
Year Franchisor
- Reasons Year
20212 26 21 0 0 0 0 47
Ohio 024
2022 4 0 4
Ohio 2023 4 p

6
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20212 26 0 0 0 0 0 26

Pennsylvania 024
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oklahoma 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oregon 202 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Pennsylvania 2023 2 10 0 0 0 0 32
South-Carolina | 20217 ) 10 0 0 0 0 2

024
2022 2 0 10 0 0 01 1
South Carolina 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
20212 31 0 0 0 0 0 31

Fennessee 024
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Tennessee 2023 3 0 0 3
20212 123 12 01 134

Texas 024
2022 13 2 0 15
Texas 2023 15 7 0 22
20212 322 on 01 0 0 0 332

Utah 024
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
tah 2023 3 0 3
20212 13 0 13
2022 1 SD) 0 0 10 0 3

Virginia 2023 0

Washington 20212 0 3

024
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Washington 2023 3 0 3
20212 23 20 43

!; l. . %
2022 4 1 0 0 0 0 5
Wisconsin 2023 5 0 0 0 0 0 5
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20212 05 10 0 0 0 0 15
e 024
Puerto Rico 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1] 1
. Ceased Outlets
Outlets at Outlets. Non- Reacquired Operation/ | atEnd
State Year | Startof | ~— | Terminations by
Y Opened Renewal F hi Other of the
= Reasons Year
2023 1 0 0 0 1
20212 901 130 20 -40 1051
Total 024
2022 105 1417 32 0 -30 01 119
Total
2023 2023 19 25 0 0 0 3 141
25 0
0
0
H9 2024 141 24 3 0 0 0 162
3

* For franchlses that opened in %%—eﬂ%&wd%mﬁh%&bama—eﬂ%}n—ﬂeﬂda—eﬁ%n

%&nemses—ller—&aﬁ%es—ﬂ%&t—epeﬁed—m—mﬂ one franchlse in Florlda one franchlse in

Georgia, one franchise in Iowa, two franchises in North Carolina, one franchise in New York,
one franchise in Texas, and one franchise in Wisconsin opened as Tier 2 franchises. For
franchises that opened in 2023, one franchise in Alabama, one franchise in California, four
franchises in Georgia, two franchises in Indiana, one franchise in Kentucky, one franchise in
Michigan, one franchise in Minnesota, two franchises in Ohio, and five franchises in Texas
opened as Tier 2 franchises. For franchises that opened in 2024, one franchise in Georgia, one
franchise in Idaho, one franchise in Louisiana, one franchise in Massachusetts, two franchises
in Michigan, one franchise in North Carolina, one franchise in New York, two franchises in
Tennessee, and eight franchises in Texas opened as Tier 2 franchises.

Table No. 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets For
Years 20212022 to 2023'2024!
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Year |Outletsat| Outlets Reacquired
Start of | Opened from Outlets|Outlets Sold to | Outlets at
State Year Franchisees |Closed| Franchisees | End of the
Year
Heornd- 2021 6 0 0 0 4 2
a
Florida 2022 |2 0 0 0 2 0
2023 |0 0 0 0 0 0
NVirsinia | 20212024 |10 0 0 0 0 10
Virginia 2022 |1 0 0 0 1 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0
*Allnumbers-are-as-of December 31,2023, 2022 _and 2021
Reacquired Outlets-Seld-te| Outletsat
State | Year g“ﬂms E 9“““’“@ : from- G“ﬂe‘&g] '| Eranchisces | Endeof the
Tpeanebises eay
Sear s
Total 20212024 |70 0 0 0 40 30
Total 2022 3 0 0 0 3 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0

! Table. 4. All numbers are as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.
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Table No. 5
Projected Openings as of December 31, 20232024, for Tier 1 and Tier 2 Franchises

State

Franchise Agreements
Signed But Business
Not Open

Projected New
Franchised Business In
Next Fiscal Year

Projected Company
Owned Businesses In
Next Fiscal Year

Alabama

Arizona

Arkansas

California

Colorado

ConneectieutDelaware

Florida

Georgia

— o= (o | o |21 —

Illinois

[y —

Indiana

IndianaKansas

KentuekyLouisiana

FeouistanaMaryland

Massachusetts

Michigan

—

Minnesota

Missouri

Nebraska

Nevada

[t | | bt

New Hampshire

New Jersey

New York

=

North Carolina

Neorth-Daketa

=R

Ohio

Oklahoma

=

Oregon

—

=

Pennsylvania

Rhodelsland

South-Carelina

TennesseeSouth Carolina

TFexasTennessee

NI | —

UtahTexas

Virginia

R s

Wi ;

TOTALS

H12
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Exhibit 5 lists the names of all of our operating franchisees and the addresses and telephone
numbers of their businesses as of December 31, 20232024. Exhibit 5 also lists the franchisees who
have signed Franchise Agreements for Businesses which were not yet operational as of
December 31, 20232024. Finally, Exhibit 5 lists the name, city and state, and business telephone
number (or, if unknown, the last known home telephone number) of every franchisee who had an
outlet terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do
business under a Franchise Agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year, or who
has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the effective date of the Disclosure Document.
If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you
leave the franchise system.

Franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses during the last three fiscal years. In some
instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly
about their experience with Pirtek USA, LLC. You may wish to speak with current and former
franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

The PIRTEK Franchise Advisory Council (“FAC”) includes elected franchisee members
and appointed franchisee members and meets periodically with corporate representatives to discuss
various franchise issues. We will utilize our PIRTEK Franchise Advisory Council (“FAC”) to
serve in an advisory capacity only. We have the power to form, change or dissolve the FAC. We
both created and sponsor the FAC, and contact information for the FAC is the same as our contact
information. The following independent franchisee organization has asked to be included in this
Disclosure Document: Fluid Power Franchisee Association, 2125 Energy Park Drive, St. Paul,
Minnesota 55108; telephone (847) 636-3307; email at infetfpfaus:—info@fpfa.us; website at
www.fpfa.us.

Item21

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit 4 are the following: audited consolidated
balance sheets as of the—ears—ended-December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022-and-202+, and the
related consolidated statements of income, changes in members’ equity (deficit) and cash flows
for the years ending December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022

and-2021, together with the report of independent certified public accountants. Our fiscal
year end is December 31.

Item22

CONTRACTS
This Disclosure Document includes a sample of the following contracts:

Exhibit 2 — PIRTEK Development Agreement
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EXHIBIT 1

List of State Administrators and Agent for Service of Process
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VIRGINIA

MICHIGAN Agent to Receive Process

Michigan Department of Attorney General Clerk of the State Corporation Commission

Consumer Protection Division 1300 E. Main Street, First Floor

Attention: Franchise Section Richmond, VA 23219

G. Mennen Williams Building, First Floor

525 West Ottawa Street State Administrator

Lansing, M1 48933 State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail
Franchising

1300 E. Main Street, Ninth Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

WASHINGTON

Agent to Receive Process

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Rd S.W.
Tumwater, WA 98501

WASHINGTON
State Administrator

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

PO Box 41200
Olympia, WA 98504-1200

WISCONSIN

Department of Financial Institutions
Division of Securities

4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, WI 53705
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EXHIBIT 2

Development Agreement
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01 Exceptions to Exclusive Rights to Development Area in (Identify any existing company-
owned or franchised PIRTEK® Centers within the Development Area or indicate “none”):

4. Development Fee. $
5. Credits.
a. Franchisee shall have paid the Initial Franchise Fee in full for the first Center to

be developed pursuant to, and in accordance with, this Development Agreement upon execution
of this Development Agreement; and

b. Franchisor shall credit $27.50655,000 of the Development Fee to the Initial
Franchise Fee for the second and each additional Center to be developed pursuant to, and in
accordance with, this Development Agreement, until such credits equal the Development Fee.
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EXHIBIT 3

Franchise Agreement
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months prior to the end of the initial ten (10)-year term of your intent to renew the license. You
must execute our then-current form of franchise agreement and all other agreements, legal
instruments and documents then customarily used by us in the renewal of franchises (the form of
franchise agreement will be modified to reflect that the agreement is for a renewal term and, if
applicable, will provide for the second ten (10)-year renewal term upon satisfaction of the
renewal conditions).

These agreements, legal instruments and documents may vary materially from those
agreements, legal instruments and documents currently in use by us, although the Territory will
remain as defined in this Agreement. There will not be another initial franchise fee charged for
renewal of the license; however, you must pay us a renewal fee in the amount of $2;56610,000,
adjusted annually in accordance with any annual change in the National Consumer Price Index,
as that change is described in Section 16.M. below. Your failure or refusal to execute the
agreements, instruments and documents within thirty (30) days after their delivery to you will be
deemed an election by you not to renew the license.

B. During the term of this Agreement, you have complied with all of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and have complied with our operating and quality standards and
requirements.

C. All monetary obligations owed by you to us, our affiliates or your suppliers or
creditors, whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, have been satisfied prior to renewal,
and have been paid in a timely manner throughout the term of this Agreement.

D. You are able to maintain possession of the premises or obtain possession of
mutually agreeable alternative premises for your Business for the duration of the renewal term
and have agreed, in writing, to make such capital expenditures necessary to refurbish, replace
and modernize your Business so that it will conform to our then-current standards for PIRTEK
Service Centers.

E. You, your Controlling Owner and your Personal Guarantors sign a general release
of claims in a form we prescribe.

PREMISES STANDARDS AND MAINTENANCE

5. You acknowledge and agree that we may promulgate, from time to time, quality and
other standards regarding the business operations of PIRTEK Service Centers so as to protect,
among other items, the distinction, goodwill and uniformity symbolized by the Marks and the
System. Accordingly, you agree to maintain and comply with our mandatory standards and agree
to the following terms and conditions.

A. Service Center Facility. The Service Center must be constructed and equipped in
accordance with our current approved specifications and standards pertaining to equipment,
inventory, signage, fixtures, furnishings, location, accessory features and design and layout of
the building premises. You will be furnished with lists of approved equipment, inventory,
signage, fixtures and furnishings. You may not commence construction of the Center nor lease a
location for the development of the Service Center until you have received our written consent to
your building plans.
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OPERATIONS STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS

6. You acknowledge and agree that we have established and may revise, from time to time,
quality standards regarding the operations of PIRTEK Hose Service Center businesses so as to
protect the distinction, goodwill and uniformity symbolized by the Marks and the System.
Accordingly, you agree to maintain and comply with our standards and requirements for the
System and agree to the following terms and conditions.

A. Products and Services. You may sell only those products and services in
connection with the Marks and Business that we have approved in writing (sometimes referred to
in this Agreement as “approved products and services”). The approved products and services
may be identified in the Manual, inventory lists or otherwise in writing, and we have the right to
add to, supplement or modify the approved products and services. These products and services
meet standards and specifications prescribed by us, which we may modify from time to time.

B. Purchases from Us and Other Vendors and Suppliers. You must purchase all
designated hoses, fixed tube assemblies, fittings, adapters, components and other products for
resale to customers (the “Inventory Products™) from us only, except for limited instances when
you must satisfy a customer’s immediate demand for products, as described in the Manual.
Under no circumstances, however, can a PIRTEK hose tag be placed on a non-PIRTEK hose. In
addition, you must purchase fixtures, equipment, and other supplies (“Non-Inventory Items”),
which we determine meet our standards and specifications of quality required to protect the
valuable goodwill and uniformity symbolized by and associated with the Marks and Business.
You will pay the then- current price in effect at the time for the Inventory Products and other
Non-Inventory Items you purchase from us. You must purchase Non-Inventory Items from us or
other vendors or suppliers that sell the Non-Inventory Items meeting our standards and
specifications, although we are the only available supplier for equipment necessary to outfit the
MSSUs and Non-Inventory Items containing the Marks. If You purchase Inventory Products or
Non-Inventory Items from third parties (and not from Us) in violation of this paragraph, You will
be required to pay Us the profits we would have received had You purchased the items from Us.
You will also be required to pay Us a $5,000 fee for anticipated administrative expenses as well
as our attorney’s fees and any other damages that may accrue. With respect to certain Inventory
Products, we may require you to hold specified levels of inventory at the Franchised Location.
We will endeavor to use our best efforts to have available for your purchase from us a full line of
Inventory Products. We have the right to apportion Inventory Products and any other items due
to shortages. ALTHOUGH APPROVED BY US, WE MAKE NO WARRANTY AND
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH
RESPECT TO PRODUCTS, SERVICES, EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, FIXTURES OR OTHER
APPROVED ITEMS. WE, HOWEVER, WILL PASS THROUGH ANY APPLICABLE
MANUFACTURER WARRANTIES ON PRODUCTS AND EQUIPMENT THAT YOU
PURCHASE FROM US, SUBJECT TO ALL WARRANTY TERMS AND CONDITIONS
IMPOSED BY THE MANUFACTURER.

C. Operations Manual. To help protect our reputation and goodwill and to maintain
uniform operating standards under the Marks and Business, you must conduct your Business in
accordance with the required standards and procedures contained in our Operations Manual and
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(iv)  You will delete any Customer Information upon our request unless you
can prove that such request is subject to an exception under applicable law; and

(v) If you receive a Customer Information data request (e.g., a request to
delete Customer Information) directly from a consumer (e.g., a California resident under
the CCPA or CPRA, or a resident of another jurisdiction under other applicable Privacy
Law), you shall inform us of that request within one business day and cooperate with us
to ensure that the consumer receives an appropriate and timely acknowledgement and
response. As an example, currently under the CCPA, an acknowledgement is typically
required within ten (10) business days and a final response is required within forty-five
(45) calendar days.

You certify that you understand the restrictions in subparagraphs (i) — (v) above of this
Section 6.Q. and will comply with them. You also acknowledge and agree that we may modify
these restrictions from time to time by written notice to you, by issuing updates to our standards
and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws, including by adding other similar restrictions that may
be required under other state or federal Privacy Laws, and you agree to comply with the same.
You also agree to execute any addendum to this Agreement that we may determine is required to
conform this Agreement to new or existing Privacy Laws.

To the extent that you engage a third party to collect, use, sell, store, disclose, analyze,
delete, modify, or to otherwise perform any processing of Customer Information for the purpose
of operating the Business (a “Subprocessor”), you will notify us of such engagement, which shall
be governed by a written contract that includes the same restrictions as in subparagraphs (1) — (5)
of this Section 6 and imposes reasonable confidentiality obligations on the Subprocessor.

R. Artificial Intelligence. You agree not to implement, use, or otherwise engage with
Artificial Intelliecence Sources in the operation of the Business unless we have given our prior

written consent. The term “Artificial Intelligence Sources” means any resource, online or
otherwise, that is for the purpose of gathering, implementing, or otherwise using information

from you using artificial intelligence technology, including ChatGPT and other sources.

SUPERVISION AND TRAINING STANDARDS

7. The following provisions and conditions control with respect to personnel, training and
supervision.
A. Supervision of the Business. Your Business must at all times be under the direct,

on-premises supervision of the Controlling Owner or the Designated Manager.

B. Training. Prior to commencement of your Business, you, your Controlling Owner,
your Designated Manager (if any), your TSR (technical sale representative), at least two (2) MSS
Technicians and your administration person must, at your expense for room, board and travel,
attend and successfully complete our training program. The training program will take place at a
location and for a period as we designate. There is no separate fee payable to us for this initial
training, as the training is included in the Initial Franchise Fee described in Section 8.A. You
understand that this Agreement will not become effective unless these individuals successfully
complete the training program to our satisfaction.
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In the event that you are given notice of default as set forth in Section 11.A. and the
default relates, in whole or in part, to your failure to meet any operational standards, we may

require as a condition of curing said default that you, your Controlling Owner, your
Designated Manager, MSS Technicians or TSR attend and successfully complete our training
program at a place that we designate and at your expense. Under no circumstances may you (i)
permit management of the Service Center’s operations on a regular basis by a Designated
Manager who has not successfully completed our training program; or (ii) permit the operation
of an MSSU by an MSST who you have not properly trained in accordance with our standards.
You also must at all times have a TSR who will fulfill the TSR roles as set forth in the Manual.

Any Designated Manager or MSST must participate in and satisfactorily complete such
additional training programs as we may reasonably designate from time to time, which may
include on-site training at another PIRTEK hose service center prior to the commencement of
your Business. Attendance at any additional training program is at your expense for room, board
and travel.

Any training provided by us to any of your employees will be limited to training or
guidance regarding the delivery of approved services to customers in a manner that reflects the
customer standards of the System. You are, and will remain, the sole employer of your
employees at all times, including during all training programs, and you are solely responsible for
all employment decisions and actions related to your employees. You are solely responsible for
ensuring that your employees receive adequate training.

C. Staffing. You must at all times maintain a sufficient number of trained employees
to properly and efficiently service your customers. You must hire and supervise efficient,
competent, and courteous persons as your employees for the operation of your Business with no
liability therefor on us. No employee of yours is deemed to be an employee of ours for any
purpose whatsoever, and nothing in any aspect of the System or the Marks in any way shifts any
employee or employment related responsibility from you to us.

D. Attendance at Meetings. You and your Designated Manager, at your expense,
must attend all meetings that we sponsor for PIRTEK franchisees to set forth new methods and
programs for operation, training, management, sales or advertising. These meetings include
national conferences for all franchisees and may also include regional seminars. If you are
unable to attend any such meeting, you should so notify us prior to the meeting and attempt to

D-cause a substitute person from your Business acceptable to us to attend and represent you at
such meeting.

FEES, REPORTING AND AUDIT RIGHTS

8. You must pay the fees described below and comply with the following provisions.

A. Initial Franchise Fee; Opening Set-up Fee; Initial Technology Start-up Fee. You
must pay to us an Initial Franchise Fee of $55,000, which must be paid in full as of or prior to the
execution of this Agreement. In addition, you must pay to us an Opening Set—upSet-up Fee in an
amount equal to $5;6060 to $14,000 (as we determine), which is due on or before your first day
of attendance at the initial training program (although this fee is not charged for an existing
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November 1% date).

Finally, if requested by us to verify your Gross Sales, you must submit to us all the books
and records as we may require under our audit policies published from time to time.

You must maintain at all times your books and records for your Business at your
Business premises. In addition, you must maintain all financial information on the Technology
described in Section 6.J. and provide the information to us according to reporting formats,
methodologies and time schedules established by us from time to time. You are required to allow
us electronic and manual access to any and all records and information relating to your Business.

E. Audits. We or our authorized representatives have the right at all times during the
business day to enter your Business premises and to evaluate, copy and audit your books and
records. We also have the right to remotely access and evaluate, copy and audit your electronic
records located on the Computer System and evaluate remotely or on the Business premises your
compliance with your obligations regarding Customer Information. If an audit is made necessary
by your failure to furnish reports, financial statements, tax returns or schedules as required under
this Agreement, or in the event that any evaluation or audit of the Business reveals an
understatement of your Gross Sales, Continuing License Fee or other material financial
information related to your Business of 4% or more from data reported to us, in addition to any
other rights we may have (including collection of amounts owed with respect to any
understatement), you must reimburse us for all audit costs including, without limitation,
professional fees, travel, and room and board expenses directly related thereto. Furthermore, we
may conduct such further periodic audits and evaluations of your books and records, at your sole
expense, as we reasonably deem necessary for up to two years thereafter. You acknowledge and
agree that if a subsequent audit or evaluation conducted within the two year period reveals any
such understatement or variance of 4% or more, in addition to any other remedies provided for in
this Agreement, at law or in equity, we have the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance
with Section 11.B. of this Agreement.

MARKETING FEES AND CONTROLS

0. You agree to actively promote your Business, to abide by all of our marketing and
advertising requirements and to comply with the following provisions.

A. Marketing Programs and Payment to Us of Administration Expenses. We or our
designee reserve the right periodically to establish, organize and prescribe sales promotion
programs. You must pay monthly to us or our designee as a Marketing Fee during the term of
this Agreement an amount equal to +—+1-1/2% to 3% of Gross Sales. You acknowledge and
agree that we may establish the percentage of Gross Sales level annually at any level from 1-
1/2% up to 3%, although you will not be required to pay a higher Marketing Fee than other
franchisees in your designated marketing area (“DMA”), as specified by us. We will notify you
annually regarding the exact percentage of Gross Sales for your Marketing Fee, except for any
year in which there is no change from the previous year.

Upon request, we will annually advise you of the unaudited receipts and expenditures of
the Marketing Fees. You acknowledge and agree that (i) we or our designee have the absolute
and exclusive right to determine expenditures of funds collected and as to the selection of the
promotional materials, items and programs for which said expenditures are made, (ii) neither we
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PIRTEK franchisees with respect to the marketing programs or expenditures of funds;
and (ii1)) we or our designee may compensate ourselves for the expense of administering and
promoting such marketing programs. Reasonable disbursements from the Marketing Fees may be
made for the payment of expenses incurred in connection with the general promotion of the
Marks and System including the cost of formulating, developing and implementing advertising
and promotional programs, and the reasonable costs of administering these programs, including
accounting expenses and the actual cost of salaries and fringe benefits paid to our or our
designee’s employees or designees engaged in administration of the programs.

We have the absolute and exclusive right to determine the methods of advertising, media
employed and contents, terms and conditions of the marketing programs. In addition, you
acknowledge that from time to time we may loan money to the marketing programs to fund
specific promotions or other similar reasons and we may be repaid out of the Marketing Fees, at
our option, with interest computed at the “base” or “prime” interest rate as publicly announced
by the Wall Street Journal and as further defined in Section 10.A.

B. Local Marketing. In addition to the Marketing Fee contributions, in order to
promote local marketing for PIRTEK Hose Service Centers, you must fully participate in local
sales and promotional activities, including the introduction of new products and other marketing
programs. These marketing programs, from time to time, may include local point of sale
promotional materials prepared by us. You must purchase and use any local marketing materials
prepared by us. You are required to spend a monthly amount between 0.375% - 0.75% of Gross
Sales for such local marketing materials and programs. The monthly amount will be an amount
that is equal to 25% of your Marketing Fee for that month. Any such local marketing must be
factual, dignified and meet the highest standards of ethical marketing, and cannot be injurious to
our Marks or their goodwill.

Unless the local materials are prepared by us, you must submit all such proposed
advertising or marketing materials to us for approval before using the materials.

FRANCHISEE’S OTHER OBLIGATIONS

10.  You agree to comply with the following terms and conditions.

A. Payment of Debts. You agree to pay promptly when due (i) all payments,
obligations, assessments, and taxes due and payable to us, vendors, suppliers, lessors, or
creditors in connection with your Business or its premises, products or services used in
connection with your Business; (ii) all liens and encumbrances of every kind and character
created or placed upon or against any of said property; and (iii) all accounts and other
indebtedness of every kind incurred by you in the conduct of your Business. In the event you
should default in making any such payment, we will be authorized, but not required, to pay the
same on your behalf and you covenant promptly to reimburse us on demand for any such
payment._Any and all amounts owing to us by you, whether the same arise under the provisions of
this Section 10.A or otherwise, will bear interest computed using a fluctuating interest rate equal to
the interest rate per annum publicly announced by the Wall Street Journal as the “prime” rate
(currently the prime rate is the base rate on corporate loans posted by at least 75% of the nation’s
30 largest banks) as effective on the last day of the prior month plus 2% per annum, or the
maximum contract rate of interest permitted by governing law, whichever is less, from and after
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the date of accrual thereof.

Any and all amounts owing to us by you, whether the same arise under the provisions of
this Section 10.A. or otherwise, will bear interest computed using a fluctuating interest rate equal
to the interest rate per annum publicly announced by the Wall Street Journal as the “prime” rate
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DISPUTE RESOLUTION

13. You and we agree as follows:

A. Arbitration. All controversies, disputes, or claims between us (and our affiliates
and our and their respective owners, officers, directors, agents, and employees, as applicable)
and you (and your affiliates and your and their respective owners, officers, and directors, as
applicable) arising out of or related to: (i) this Agreement or any other agreement between you
(or your owner) and us (or our affiliate) relating to the Pirtek Business or any provision of any
such agreements; (ii) our relationship with you; (iii) the validity of this Agreement or any other
agreement between you (or your owner) and us (or our affiliate) relating to the Pirtek Business,
or any provision of any such agreements, and the validity and scope of the arbitration obligation
under this Section; or any standard associated with the Pirtek Business, must be submitted for
arbitration to the American Arbitration Association. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, such arbitration proceedings will be heard by one (1) arbitrator in accordance with
the then-existing Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association, who
must have at least five years’ experience in franchise law. All proceedings, including the hearing,

A—will be conducted at a suitable location that is within ten (10) miles of where we have our (or,
in the case of a transfer by us, the then-current franchisor has its) principal business address
when the arbitration demand is filed. The arbitrator will have no authority to select a different
hearing locale other than as described in the prior sentence. All matters within the scope of the
Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. Sections 1 et seq.) will be governed by it and not by any state
arbitration law. The arbitrator has the right to award any relief he or she deems proper in the
circumstances, including money damages (with interest on unpaid amounts from the date due),
specific performance, injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees and costs (in accordance with 13.C.
below), provided that: (i) the arbitrator has no authority to declare any Mark generic or otherwise
invalid; and (ii) subject to the exceptions in Section 16.K., we and you waive to the fullest extent
the law permits any right to or claim for any punitive, exemplary, treble, and other forms of
multiple damages against the other as per Section 16.J. The arbitrator’s award and decision will
be conclusive and bind all parties covered by this Section, and judgment upon the award may be
entered in a court specified or permitted in Section 22.H below. We and you will be bound by
any limitation under this Agreement or applicable Law, whichever expires first, on the timeframe
in which claims must be brought. We and you further agree that, in connection with any
arbitration proceeding, each must submit or file any claim constituting a compulsory
counterclaim (as defined by the then-current Rule 13 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure)
within the same proceeding as the claim to which it relates. Any such claim not submitted or
filed in the proceeding will be barred. The arbitrator may not consider any settlement discussions
or offers either you or we made. We reserve the right, but have no obligation, to advance your
share of the costs of any arbitration proceeding in order for the arbitration proceeding to take
place and by doing so do not waive or relinquish our right to seek recovery of those costs in
accordance with Section 22.C above.

We and you agree that arbitration will be conducted on an individual basis and not in a
class, consolidated, or representative action, that only we (and our affiliates and our and their
respective owners, officers, directors, agents, and employees, as applicable) and you (and your

affiliates and your and their respective owners, officers, and directors, as applicable) may
be the parties to any arbitration proceeding described in this Section, and that no such arbitration
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financial reports and other data relating to your Business and its operations as we, in our
sole and exclusive judgment, may deem necessary or appropriate for assignee and/or us
to evaluate your Business and the proposed transfer. You agree that we have the right to
confer with proposed assignees and furnish them with information concerning your
Business and proposed transfer without being held liable to you, except for intentional
misstatements made to any such assignee. Any such information furnished by us to
proposed assignees is for the sole purpose of permitting the assignees to evaluate the
Business and proposed transfer and must not be construed in any manner or form
whatsoever as earnings claims or claims of success or failure.

D. Death, Disability or Incapacity. If you (or Controlling Owner) die or become
disabled or incapacitated and the decedent’s or disabled or incapacitated person’s heir or
successor-in-interest wishes to continue as a franchisee hereunder, such person or entity must
apply for our consent thereto under Section 14.B, and satisfy the transfer conditions described in
Section 14.C, as in any other case of a proposed transfer. If the assignee of the decedent or
disabled or incapacitated person is the spouse or child of such person, no transfer fee is payable
to us. In the event that you (or Controlling Owner) die or become permanently incapacitated, and

D-—the rights hereunder are not assigned (with our approval) pursuant to Sections 14.A-C and
14.E, then unless and until we terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 13.B hereof, we
have the right, but not the obligation, to enter onto your Business premises and to operate and
manage your Business until the franchise is terminated or assigned to a party acceptable to us in
accordance herewith eryenor you have appointed a manager who is approved and trained by us;
provided, however, no such operation and management by us continues for more than 180 days
without the written consent of either you or the representative of the estate. In the event that we
operate your Business, we will account for all net income for such operation less our reasonable
expenses incurred in, and a reasonable management fee for, our operation of your Business and it
is agreed that you must bear all losses incurred.

E. Right of First Refusal. If you or Controlling Owner proposes to transfer or assign
this Agreement or your interest herein (including Controlling Owner’s interest in an entity
Franchisee) or in the Business conducted hereunder, in whole or in part, to any third party,
including, without limitation, any transfer contemplated by Sections 14.A and 14.D, you or
Controlling Owner first must offer to sell to us said interest as provided herein. In the event of a
bona fide offer from such third party, you or Controlling Owner must obtain from the third-party
offeror and deliver to us a statement in writing, signed by the offeror and by you, of the terms of
the offer.

In the event of (i) a transfer or assignment of stock or similar ownership interests of you
or Controlling Owner’s interest in you or (ii) you or Controlling Owner’s insolvency or the filing
of any petition by or against you or Controlling Owner under any provisions of any bankruptcy
or insolvency law, the offer will be for you and Controlling Owner’s interest in this Agreement,
and the building equipment, inventory, fixtures, and leasehold interest used in the operation of
the Center. An amount and terms of purchase must be established by a qualified appraiser
selected by the parties. If the parties cannot agree upon the selection of such an appraiser, the
American Arbitration Association will appoint one upon petition of either party to appoint an

appraiser to establish such price in accordance with the rules and procedures of the
Association. We must receive a statement in writing incorporating the appraiser’s report.
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TIER 2

DBA TRADE NAME FOR YOUR BUSINESS: PIRTEK

FRANCHISED LOCATION

As stated in Paragraph 2 of the Franchise Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Franchise Agreement, the Franchised Location at which you must conduct your PIRTEK
Business is defined as follows:

TERRITORY

As stated in Paragraph 2 of the Franchise Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions
of the Franchise Agreement, the Territory in which you must conduct your PIRTEK Business is
defined as follows:

In order to maintain the Territory with the Territory protections set forth in Paragraph 2,
you must have 2 MSS Units and 2 MSS Technicians in the Territory within 120 days of the
Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement.

ADDITIONAL MSS UNIT, TECHNICIANS AND THE SERVICE & SUPPLY CENTER

A. On or before fifteentwenty-four months (_), from the date that the Franchise Agreement is
signed you must add one additional MSS Unit and one MSS Technician (for a total of
three MSSUs and three MSSTs).

B. On or before thirty-nine months () from the date the Franchise Agreement is signed,
you must (i) open a Service & Supply Center; and (ii) add a Technical Sales Rep (TSR)
whose primary responsibilities will be sales and promoting the PIRTEK product and
services in the Territory.

If at any time you do not maintain the MSS Units and MSS Technicians as set forth
above, we will notify you of the default and give you a cure period under the Franchise
Agreement to cure the default. If you don’t cure the default, we have the right to reduce the
Territory or exercise other remedies set forth in the Franchise Agreement.

Service Center Facility. As part of the Tier 2 franchise, you will not be required to
operate the Service Center and comply with Sections 5.A-E of the Franchise Agreement until the
time you add your third MSSU to the Business, provided that you comply with the following
conditions:

Opening Set-up Fee; Initial Technology Start-up Fee. For the Tier 2 franchise, payment
of the Opening Set-up Fee and Initial Technology Start-up Fee in the second sentence of Section
8.A of the Franchise Agreement is replaced with the following:

In addition, you must pay to us an Initial Technology Start-up Fee in an amount equal to
$8,000 to $10,000 (as we determine), which is payable prior to the date you commence business
operations. Also, when you convert from a Tier 2 to a Tier 1 Center, we may charge you an

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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Opening Set-up Fee in an amount equal to $5;6000 to $14,000 (as we determine), which amount
shall become due and payable at the time services are requested.

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT ADDENDUM TO
PIRTEK® FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Do not sign this Acknowledgment Addendum if you are a resident of Maryland or
California or the business is to be operated in Maryland- or California

As you know, you and we are entering into a Franchise Agreement for the operation of a
PIRTEK® franchise. The purpose of this Acknowledgment Addendum is to determine whether
any statements or promises were made to you that we have not authorized or that may be untrue,
inaccurate or misleading. Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide
honest responses to each question.

Acknowledgments and Representations."

1. Did you receive a copy of our Disclosure Document (and all exhibits and attachments) at
least (a) 14 calendar days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement, or (b) if you are a
resident of New York, at the earlier or the first personal meeting or 10 business days
before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or payment of any consideration,
or (c) if you are a resident of Iowa or Michigan, at the earlier of 10 business days before
the execution of any binding agreement or payment of any consideration? Check one: ()
Yes () No. If no, please comment:

2. Have you studied and reviewed carefully our Disclosure Document and Franchise
Agreement ?
Check one: (_) Yes () No. If no, please comment:

3. If we made any unilateral changes to the Franchise Agreement, did you receive a copy of
the complete revised agreement at least seven calendar days prior to the date on which the
Franchise Agreement was executed? Check one: (_) Yes () No. If no, please comment: _

4. Did you understand all the information contained in both the Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement? Check one (_) Yes () No. If no, please comment:

5. Was any oral, written or visual claim or representation made to you that contradicted the
disclosures in the Disclosure Document? Check one: ( ) No (_) Yes. If yes, please
state in detail the oral, written or visual claim or representation:

* Such representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred
under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Except
to the extent we have negotiated changes to the Franchise Agreement that differ from the Franchise Disclosure

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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EXHIBIT 4

Audited Financial Statements
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CohnReznick LLP COhnRezniCk@

Independent Auditor's Report

To Management
Pirtek USA, LLC and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pirtek USA, LLC and its subsidiaries (the
"Company"), which cemprisescomprise the consolidated balance sheeisheets as of December 31,
2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in members' equity
(deficit), and cash flows for the yearyears then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the yearyears then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditaudits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America ("GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of the Company, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our auditaudits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of Pirtek USA, LLC and subsidiaries for the yearsyear ended
December 31, 2022 and-2024-were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements on March 21, 2023.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements
are available to be issued.

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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CohnReznick@

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

March 20, 2024

z% xév(o&’,?”

Boca Raton, Florida
March 14, 2025
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C lidated Bal S| I
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
Assets
2024 2023 2022 —
2021
Current assets
Currentassets
Cash $ 11,373,956 $ 4,098,411
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit
losses of $118,400 at December 31, 2024,
losses-0£$106,724 at December 31, 2023; and _
$100,000 at December 31, 2022-and, respectively 5,073,496 6,270,079
Receivables, other 253,647 325,530
Current portion of notes receivable_ 1,933,925 2,655,082
Inventory, net of allowan f $92 at
Inventorynetofallowance-of $92,000-at
December 31, 20232024, $55,00092,000 at December
31, 20222023,
and $40,00055,000 at December 31, 20242022, 41 4 6,150,015
respectively
Prepaid expenses 1,421,358 1,029,732
Deposits 83,593 83,593
Total current assets 26,558,669 20,612,442
Pr lant an ipment:
Computer software and hardware 1,256,807 1,186,220
Office furniture and equipment 836,864 836,864
Van and warehouse equipment 2,646,706 2,610,200
Vehicles - 43,434
Leasehold improvements 332,967 332,967
5;
Total property, plant and equipment 5,073,344 5,009,685 0 5,460,7785,006,9
0 16
6;
9
1
8
Less accumulated depreciation 198,12 (2,701,819) _ (2,656:6372,994 .1
@ 18)
2
9
4
1
1
8)

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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Pirtek USA, LLC and Subsidiari

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,875,215 2,307,866 2. 204 A
0 12,012,798
1
Z
Z
9
8
Otherassels
Other assets
Notes receivable, less current portion, net of allowance- 55,845 511,186 2,834,403
for
redit | f December 31, 2024
creditlossesof$262,310 at December 31, 2023, 511,186 2, 3:675.047
respectively 8
3
4.
4
0
3
Master franchise agreement, net 335,105 335,105 3 335,105
3
5;
1
0
5
Goodwill, net - 62,063 4+ 235,689137,063
3
+
0
6
3
Right-of-use asset 32,327,250 35,492,737 -
1 10,968,2
0, 23
9
6
&
2
2
3
Total other assets 32,718,200 36,401,091 1 439584
4. 1=14.274,794
2
Z
&
Z
g
4
Total assets $ 61,152,084 $—59-32—1—399—?£—$—24-Om-415-
3 35,935.406
5
9
3
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Liabilities and Members' Equity{Deficit)

2024 2023 2022
Current liabilities
2023 2022 2021
Currentliabilities $ 976,550 $ 1,430,573 $ 1,999,165
Accounts payable $ 2022
Accrued payroll obligation 423,466 98,439 91,592 2
Other accrued liabilities 1,490,690 1,472,990 1,231,647 590
Current portion of right-of-use lease liability 741,029 688,500 1,228,246
Current portion of notes payable - - 909,801 05S
Current portion-of capital leases - - 81
Income taxes payable 2,743,446 353,069 3,412,052 2427
Deferred revenue 899,574 590,415 1,674,398 104
689
Total current liabilities 7,274,755 4,633,986 10,546,901
| s
Notes-payable-less-current-portion - 7,842,474 18,442
CapitaHleases;lesscurrent-portion - - 145
Deferred revenue;lesscurrentportion 1,322, 7 -
84
76
TotalHong-term-liabilities 37.038.207 17914275 18.98
Totalliabilities 41672103 28461178 !
Total , ity-(doficit 17 549208 7474230 4 857
Totalliabiliti , el S 59.321.399 S 35.035.406 § 2402
Pirtek USA. LLC | Subsidiari
Consolidated-Statements-oflncome—
Years Ended December34, 2023, 2022 and 2021
2023 2022 2021
Long-term liabilities
Notes payable, less current portion - - 7,842,471
Deferred revenue, less current portion 2,308,679 1,322,784 -
Revenues Deferred tax liability, net 402,822 213,37 1,827
Right-of-use lease liability, less current portion 32,877,631 35,502,047 7 77
Total long-term liabiliti 35,589,132 7 207 17,914,275
Total liabilities 42,863,887 41,672,193 28,461,176
mbers' i
Members' equity 18,288,197 17,649,206 7,474,230
Litera Co
S Total members' equity 18,288,197 17,649,206 7,474,230
Total liabiliti nd members' i $ 61,152,084 $ 59,321,399 $ 35,935,406

—_
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Revenues
Product and labor sales

Initial franchise and training fees
Licensing fees

Software user license fees
Total revenues
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Operating expenses

3 3

Income from operations
44.022:514

Other (expenses) income
Other expense, net
Interest income

Gain on extingdishment-of
debtrecovery of credit losses

Interest expense
Total other income (expenses)

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

2024 2023 2022
Amount __Percent Amount __Percent Amount __Percent
32,430,533% 79.577.8% $-28,318,995 79:.979.5% $-25,744.292 82.279.9%
32,909,036 32,430,533 28,318,995
4;009,2671,298,17 2531% 707,6141,009,.26 2.025%  473,455707,614 4:52.0%
8 1
5,578,4986,053,18 13-714.3% 5,012,0665,578, 14413.7% 3;852,2525,012, 12.314.1%
9 498 066
1769307 43 4.9% 4426027 4.0 43% 1263775 _ 40%
__ 2065425 __ 1,769,307 1,426,027
40.787-59942 325 100.0% 35,464-702. 40,7 100.0% 34,333,474 35.4 100.0%
828 87,599 64,702
43,448,498 322 29.0% 10,830;314 305 322% 9,825,058 34.4_30.5%
_ 12,287,939 __ 13,118,498 10,830,314
27,669;40130,037 87.871.0%  24:634,38827.6 69.567.8%  21;508,41624.6 68.669.5%
889 69,101 34,388
13,295,895
33.5 31.4% 14235207 3147 33.5% 12,086,714 38.6_31.7%
13,646,587 11,235,207
__ 16,741,994 34.3 39.5% 13,399,481 378 343% 9421705 30-1_37.8%
14,022,514 13,399,181
(326,459359,956) -0-8:09% (479;584326,159) -1.4-08% (135;884479,584) -0.4-14%
432229,790 05% 225;750219.432 0.605%  459;510225,750 0:50.6%
-262,310 0:00.6% - 0.0% - 3.00.0%
(2449 -08_ 0.0% (896,548 25 -06% (4:343,08 -43 -25%
20192) 244.,920) 7896,548)
354,644 09 03% (4:450,38 -3.2 -09% (3878641, -12_ -32%
131,952 2351,647) 150,382)
413,670,86716,873 33.530.9%  12,248,79913.6 34.5335% 9;033,84112,248 28.834.5%
946 70,867 99
(3;277,0314, -80 -111% (3;285240 -93 -80% (4;884;282 -8.0_-93%
682,790) 3,277,031) 3,285,240)
_$-10.393.836 255 28.8% _$8963559 253 255% _$—7449,559 22.8 253%
12,191,156 ___ 10,393,836 __ 8963559

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 9

9

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025



N , it
Netincome
Balance - December 31, 2021

Members' contributions

Net income

Balance - December 31, 2022
Non cash members' contributions
Members' distributions

Net income

Balance - December 31, 2023

Members' distributions
Net income

Balance - December 31, 2024

Members'
equity (deficit) Total
Units
5.029-672 $  (8,054.886) $  (8.054.886)
5,029,672 $ (1,857,761) $ (1,857,761)
- 368,432 368,432
- 8,963,559 8,963,559
5,029,672 7,474,230 7,474,230
- 203,602 203,602
- (422,462) (422,462)
- 10.393.836 10.393.836
5,029,672 -3 —$
17,649,20 17,649,20
6 6
- (11,552,165) (11,552,165)
- 12,191,156 12,191,156
5,029,672 $ 18,288,197 _§ 18,288,197

10

1
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2022

s ;ash flows from ogerating actiw
2023 2022 2021
Net income $-10.393.836 $ $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash_ 12,191,156 8,963,55910 7,149,5598
provided by operating activities »393,836 963,559
Depreciation
21,65
542,834 491,753
ded! . ities:
Amortization £5,060062,063 75,000 75,000
Allowance for credit losses 269;03411,676 55,341269,034 4.65955,341
Inventory reserve 37,000- 45,00037,000 -15,000
Disposal of franchise agreements - SLbbo. -150,000
Gai ! [ ! .
losses (262,310) = ;
{Gain}- on sale of assets (4:53616,310) (258,6674,536) (104,691258,667)
Deferred tax liabili 189,446 (118,451) (60,395)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Operating leases 697,810593,600 -697,810 -
Accounts receivable {295;455)1,184,907  (864,;334295,155) (410,;093864,334)
Receivables, other 292.44371,883 {157,292)292,113 (45625157,292)
Inventory (636,759268,679) (274,386636,759) (4,280,327274,38
6)
Prepaid expenses 3;078,732(391,626) {—1—,37—1—,86993@28, (569,9551,371,86
0)
Deposits 5,092- -5,092 092 £:289-
Accounts payable (568,592454,023)  (23,664568,592) 1-222.167(23,664)
Accrued payroll obligation 6,847325,027 19,2676,847 12,70219,267
Other accrued liabilities 244-49217,701 584.126241,492 346.278584,126
Income taxes payable (3;058,983)2,390,3 4,284,900(3,058,9 939,5791,284,90
i 83) 0
Deferred revenue 238.8041,295,054 627449238,801 271.954627,419
Net cash provided by operating activities 1419611517, 925576711, LOSS Y,
461,597 196,11 255,767
Cash ; . . —
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received on sale of franchises - 420000, -480,000
Hupshocoetimachicoaoraomanio - - LEonoos
Cash received on sale of fixed assets 22558734 400 -225,587 -
Issuance of notes receivable (403,566256,851) -(103,566) {1.800,978)-
Net payments received from notes receivable 405.4191,695,658 5 405,419  634,287413,713
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1.058953 (377.9951,0 (616.5533
107,094 58,953) 77,995)
Net cash provided by (used in) provided-by- 63145131, 515718 :
investing activities 366,113 (531,513) 4)515,718

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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Cash flows from financing activities
Net payments to related parties
Members' contributions
Members' distributions

Principal payments of notes payable
: :
Princi 9 I ‘ ol
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Supsl | disel ¢ cach flowinformat

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for interest

Cash paid during the year for income taxes

Contribution of member deficit via Pirtek Canada
consolidation

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirt
SeeN . lidated Ei Al _

- {286,356)- (874674286,356)
- 368;432- -368,432
(%462&&6251) -(422,462) -

08,549,664) 0.600,000)

(89721261 (3051792 (5:803:9891
1,552,165 48,972,126) 0,517,924
1,892,4767,275,  {746;439)1,692, 343;262(746,439
545 476 )
4,098,411 2,405,935 3,152,374
11,373,956 4,098,411 2,405,935
_$ _$ _$—1:343;087

244 896,548 896,548

920173 244,920

_$ _$ &

1,756,869 3,052,662 3,424,283

_$ - _¢

203 203,602 952,

602 434 -

ek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note 1 - Nature of business

Pirtek USA, LLC ("Pirtek USA") is the master franchisee for the United States of America ("USA") of
Pirtek Fluid Systems PTY Ltd. (an Australian company). During November 2021, Pirtek USA and
Pirtek Fluid Systems PTY Ltd amended and replaced the Master Franchise Agreement ("MFA") with
a Trademark License Agreement ("TLA") granting the right to license and use the trademarks and
system standards of the Pirtek business. All franchise agreements and existing franchises are now
subject to the terms and conditions of the TLA. The term of the TLA is twenty (20) years. Pirtek USA
is organized as a limited liability company, and as such, no member is liable for the debts, liabilities,
or obligations of Pirtek USA beyond their capital contributions and particular guarantees in place.
Pirtek USA grants franchises, provides marketing, training, and central parts inventory warehousing
to its franchisees.

On October 15, 2020, Pirtek USA organized Hydraulic Hose of Virginia Beach, LLC ("Virginia Beach").
Virginia Beach is a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of Virginia and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Pirtek USA. On November 6, 2020, Virginia Beach acquired one (1)
location, Pirtek Norfolk ("Norfolk"), now known as Pirtek Virginia Beach ("Virginia Beach"). See
Business Acquisitions Note. Norfolk was previously a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pirtek USA from
JuIy 2017 to May 2018 Norfolk was sold in May 2018 by Plrtek USA M@M—Beaeh—eﬁeps

¥+Fg+n+a—and—v+a—sew+ee#elewe#y—veh+eles—0n December 1, 2022 Plrtek USA soId V|rg|n|a Beach
and during 2023 the legal entity was dissolved.

On January 8, 2020, Pirtek USA organized WABU, LLC ("WABU"). WABU is a limited liability
company organized under the laws of the State of Florida and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pirtek
USA. On January 21, 2020, WABU acquired six (6) Pirtek locations, d/b/a Pirtek Ft. Myers ("Ft.
Myers"), Pirtek Lakeland ("Lakeland"), Pirtek Ocala ("Ocala"), Pirtek Pensacola ("Pensacola"), Pirtek
Sarasota ("Sarasota") and Pirtek Tallahassee ("Tallahassee"). See Business Acquisitions
NoteSales Note. Both Norfolk and Virginia Beach offered hydraulic/industrial hose installation and
replacement services at its retail location in Virginia Beach, Virginia and via service/delivery
vehicles. The six (6) Pirtek locations offer hydraulic/industrial hose installation and replacement
services at retail locations in the State of Florida and via service/delivery vehicles and three (3) at
retail locations in the State of Florida. On December 1, 2021, Pirtek USA sold off four (4) of the six
(6) locations. The locations sold were Sarasota, Lakeland, Ocala, and Fort Myers. On February 8,
2022, Pirtek USA sold off the remaining two (2) locations: Pensacola and Tallahassee.

Pirtek Fluid Systems Canada, LTD. ("Pirtek Canada") is a British Columbia company and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Pirtek USA. Pirtek Canada intends to operate as a franchisor in the Canadian
market offering franchising services like Pirtek USA. The subsidiary began operations on July 1, 2020.
In 2020, Pirtek Canada's operations were de minimis. In 2021, Pirtek USA consolidated this entity
with the financial statements. The first revenues derived from franchisee operations began in 2023.

Pirtek Las Vegas, LLC (a Nevada limited liability company), d/b/a Pirtek Las Vegas
("Las Vegas"), is a potential company store location that ultimately would be sold to a potential
franchisee and wholly-owned subsidiary of Pirtek USA. The subsidiary was established in May of
2021. Las Vegas intended to offer hydraulic/industrial hose installation and replacement services in
its Las Vegas, Nevada territory. Las Vegas' operations were de minimis. In 2021, Pirtek USA
consolidated this entity with the financial statements. In 2023, it was determined that this entity would
not operate, and the legal entity was dissolved.

During October 2023, there was a transaction that resulted in a change in control of the ownership of

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incIude the accounts of Pirtek USA and Pirtek Canada Et

Qeala—(darwary—%%@%#ough—November—Z@%—Pensacola (January 2020 through February 2022}
), Tallahassee (January 2020 through February

Sarasota—{(January-2020-through-November-2021
2022), Virginia Beach (November 2020 through December 2022), Las Vegas (May 2021 through
June 2023), its wholly-owned subsidiaries (the "Company"). All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Hevroeesuptingprencuneemenis

MeasurementofAllowance for credit losses-on-financiakinstruments

The Company has adopted ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses ("Topic 326")
on January 1, 2023. Under Topic 326, an entity recognizes as an allowance its estimate of expected
credit losses on certain financial instruments, including accounts and notes receivable, which will
result in more timely recognition of such losses. Impairment is based on expected, rather than
probable, credit losses. The method applied by the Company is the historical collection method, in
which expected credit losses are determined on the basis of historical collections. The adoption of
Topic 326 did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position as of January 1, 2023.

The Company's provision for expected credit losses is presented net of its accounts and notes
receivable on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
("Topic 606").

Topic 606 prescribes a five (5) step model that focuses on transfer of control and entitlement to
payment when determining the amount of revenue to be recognized. Under Topic 606, an entity is
required to perform the following five (5) steps: (1) identify the contract(s) with a customer; (2) identify
the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when (or
as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Pirtek USA recognizes revenues on product sales at a point in time as products are shipped-toe-the
franchiseestransferred to the customer, either upon shipment or delivery dependent on the terms of
the contract. The wholly-owned subsidiaries recognize revenues on product sales as products are
sold or installed and on services as services are completed.

Pirtek USA recognizes revenues over time on initial individual franchise and training fees of $20,000

- $50,00055,000 when all of the following criteria are met: (1) the parties to the contract have
approved the contract and are committed to perform their respective obligations, (2) the Company is
able to identify each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred, (3) the
Company is able to identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred, (4) the
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substance and (5) it is probable that the Company will collect substantially all of the consideration
to which they are entitled in exchange for the goods or services transferred to the franchisee.
Services included in the initial fee include training, site selection, marketing, and other consulting
services.
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Pirtek USA recognizes revenuesrevenue at a point in time on licensing fees monthly as they are
billed to the franchisees. Licensing fees equal 4% of a franchisee's monthly gross sales.

Pirtek USA recognizes revenue at a point in time on Technology Fees monthly as they are billed to
the franchisees. Technology Fees are for software services, mobile technology, cyber security, other
communication lines, and technology services. Technology fees are comprised of twethree

separate billings. An initial technology fee is charged in the amount between $5,000 and $8,000.

Franchisees must pay these fees on or before the day of opening and are earned upon completion
of services. A software fee is charged at a minimum of $255 per month per license for a minimum

number of licenses. A mobile software fee is charged at a minimum of $75 per month per mobile
unit for a minimum number of mobile units. Franchisees at their discretion can increase the number
of licenses above the minimums for an additional charge.

Pirtek USA recognizes revenue at a point in time on Opening Setup Fees in the amount between
$5,000 and $10,000. Franchisees must pay these fees on or before the first day of the initial training

program. In exchange for the fees, the Company spends approximately 10-15 business days at the
Franchisees' center to generally get them ready to open their Center for business.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists of funds received for initial franchisee fees which are amortized as revenue
over the life of the franchise agreement which is typically ten (10) years. Management records the
current portion of deferred revenue in the current liabilities section of the consolidating balance sheets
and classifies the remaining portion as long term. The Company offers various initial franchise fee
arrangements. Generally, the initial franchise fee is $50,00055,000, of which $10,000 - $20,000 is
recognized upon opening-of-the-locationcompletion of services included in the initial fee, and the
remaining balance is amortized over the life of the franchise agreement. The balance of deferred
revenue aton December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022—and—2024, respectively was
$4,913,1993,208,253, $4—6¥4—3981 913,199, and $1,046,9791,674,398. The balance of deferred
revenue as of January 1, 20212022, was $775,0251,046,979.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly
liguidhighly-liguid debt instruments purchased with a maturity date of three (3) months or less to be
cash equivalents. The Company does not hold any cash equivalents. At times throughout the year,
the Company's cash balances may exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") limits.
The Company had cash deposits more than the FDIC limits totaling $11,354,413, $3,760,052, and
$1,924,906 and

$3,076,741-as of December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022-and-2021, respectively. The Company has
not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Accounts and notes receivable

Accounts receivable evolve in the normal course of business. Pirtek USA considers receivables
outstanding for more than sixty (60) days delinquent. All the wholly owned subsidiaries determine the
delinquency of receivables on a case-by-case basis. Notes receivable range in interest from 0% to
912.50%. The finance charge is 9.5% - 10.5% (prime rate plus 2% during 20232024). The
Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible
amounts. The Company's estimates are based on historical collection experience and a review of the
current status of trade accounts receivable. For larger accounts, the allowance for losses is
determined primarily
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The Company utilizes a loss rate approach in determining its lifetime expected credit losses on its
loans to customers. This method is used for calculating an estimate of losses based primarily on the
Company's historical loss experience. In determining its loss rates, the Company evaluates
information related to its historical losses, adjusted for current conditions and for the period of time
that can be reasonably forecasted. For the period of time beyond which the Company can reasonably
forecast, the Company applies immediate reversion based on the facts and circumstances as of the
reporting date.

Qualitative and quantitative adjustments related to current conditions and the reasonable and
supportable forecast period consider all of the following: the borrower's creditworthiness, changes in
lending policy and procedures, effect of other external forces such as competition, legal and
regulatory requirements on the level of estimated credit losses in the existing portfolio, and the current
and forecasted direction of the economic and business environment. Such forecasted information
includes GDP growth, unemployment rates and interest rates amongst others. The balance of notes
receivable as of January 1, 20212022, was $3,140,6564,135,328.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value using the average cost method.
Inventory consists of hydraulic hoses, metal hose fittings, shop and van equipment, office, and
marketing supplies. A valuation allowance is provided for obsolete and slow-moving inventory to write
down the cost to net realizable value, if necessary. The valuation allowance is calculated as a
percentage of the inventory considered slow-moving based on the Company's historical sales data.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
charged against operations in the period incurred. For financial reporting purposes, depreciation and
amortization of property, plant and equipment are provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Computer software and hardware 3-5years
Office furniture and equipment 5-7 years
Van and warehouse equipment 7 -10years
Vehicles 5 years
Leasehold improvements 2 - 15 years

Intangible assets

The MFA was contributed to the Company by its member and former members as part of their initial
capital contribution. Goodwill was recorded related to the purchase of assets by Pirtek USA, Inc. in
February 1998. In May 1999, the Company paid $156,000 for certain exclusive territory rights. The
MFA, TLA, goodwill and territory rights, because of their indefinite lives, are all included with goodwill
in regards to testing for impairment. If considered impaired, goodwill and intangible assets are written
down to fair value and a corresponding impairment loss is recognized. Effective December 1, 2014,
the Company has elected to apply the accounting alternative allowed under update 2014-02 to the
FASB ASC 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other, and has begun amortizing the remaining goodwill
related to the February 1998 purchase of assets using the straight-line method over ten (10) years.
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Income taxes

Pirtek USA is organized as a taxable corporation under the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC").
Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements include a provision for federal and state income
taxes.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740 "Accounting for Income
Taxes." Federal and state income taxes are calculated and recorded on the current period's activity
in accordance with the tax laws and regulations that are in effect.

In addition, Accounting for Income Taxes requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for
the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the consolidated financial
statements or tax return. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based
on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse.

The Company has adopted FASB ASC 740-10-05, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes"
("ASC"). The ASC clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
enterprise's financial statements. The ASC prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attitude for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. The ASC provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition.

At December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022-anrd-2024, the Company had no material unrecognized tax
benefits and no adjustments to liabilities or operations were required. The Company recognizes
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. As of December 31,
2024, 2023; and 2022 and-2024-the Company has not recorded any provisions for accrued interest
and penalties related to uncertain tax positions.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are generally charged to operations in the period incurred and totaled $362,410403,053,
$333,505362,110, and $346,265333,505 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022-and-
2021, respectively.

Right-of-use assets
The Company's leases consist of noncancelable operating leases that relate to real estate
agreements.

Topic 842 establishes a right-of-use ("ROU") model that requires the Company to record a ROU asset
and a lease liability on the statements of financial position for all leases with terms longer than twelve
months. Leases are classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern
of expense recognition in the consolidated statements of activities—and—changes—in—net
assetsincome. Minimum rental payments under operating leases are recognized as a single lease
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, while finance leases are recognized as
interest and amortization expense.
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Date of Management's review

The Company evaluates events and transactions occurring subsequent to the date of the
consolidated financial statements for matters requiring recognition or disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements. The accompanying consolidated financial statements consider events through
March 2014, 20242025, the date at which the consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued.
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On February 8, 2022, Pirtek USA, LLC entered into an agreement for the sale of remaining two (2) of
the six (6) WABU locations for a purchase price of $430,000. Pirtek USA, LLC recognized a loss of
$476,768 in fiscal year 2022 on the sale of two (2) WABU locations.

On December 1, 2022, Pirtek USA entered into an agreement for the sale of the Virginia Beach
location for a purchase price of $300,000. Pirtek USA, LLC recognized a gain of $17,303 in fiscal
year 2022 on the sale of the Virginia Beach location.

Note 3 - Notes receivable

In October 2017, the Company reclassified receivables due from an existing franchisee to a $296,235
note receivable. The interest rate is 6% and requires payments interest only for the first twelve (12)
months in the amount of $1,481, payments of principal and interest totaling $2,500 for months thirteen
(13) through twenty-four (24), $3,500 for months twenty-five (25) through thirty-six (36), $4,500 for
months thirty-seven (37) through forty-eight (48), and $5,500 for months forty-nine (49) through sixty
(60), with the first payment due on November 1, 2017. On October 1, 2022, a balloon payment of the
outstanding principal and interest of $168,671 was due. A new note receivable was entered into on
October 1, 2022, for $168,671. The interest rate is 8% and requires monthly payments of principal

Pirtek USA_ LLC | Subsidiari
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L e e
and interest in the amount of $6,300 for twelve (12) months. During 2023, the remaining balance of
principal and interest was paid.

In July 2018, the Company entered into a note receivable related to the sale of the Foster franchise
in the amount of $777,448. The interest rate is 6% and requires payments of principal and interest in
the amount of $8,000 for one hundred twenty (120) months, with the first payment due September 1,
2018, and a balloon payment of $155,129 due on October 1, 2028. During 2024, the remaining

balance of principal and interest was paid.

In February 2019, the Company entered into a note receivable related to the sale of the Inland Valley
and Commerce South franchises in the amount of $800,000. The interest rate is 6% and requires
payments of principal and interest in the amount of $6,751 for sixty (60) months, with the first payment
due April 1, 2019, and a balloon payment of $608,073 due on March 31, 2024._As of June 30, 2024
the terms were modified to adjust the interest rate to 10.33% and the payments of principal and
interest to $8,800. The note matures on January 31, 2025, and remains currently outstanding on a
month to month basis.

In February 2019, the Company entered into a note receivable related to the sale of the Tampa

franchise in the amount of $790,000. The interest rate is 6% and requires payments of principal and

interest in the amount of $18,771 for the first nine (9) months, payments of principal and interest of
Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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principal and interest i , with the first payment due
March 1, 2020, and a baIIoon payment of $539 264 due on February 1, 2023 During 2023, this note
was amended to extend the maturity date to June 1, 2024, with a balloon payment of $470,321 on
that date._During 2024, the remaining balance of principal and interest was paid.
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y e i : : gpig of principal and interest in
the amount of $4,802 for one hundred and elght (108) months with the first payment due
November 1, 2020. The note matures October of 2029. During 2024, the remaining balance of
principal and interest was paid.

In December 2021, the Company entered into a note receivable related to the sale of the
Sarasota, Ft. Myers, Lakeland, and Ocala franchises in the amount of $1,450,000. The interest
rate is 6% and requires payments of principal and interest in the amount of $9,343 for thirty-five (35)
months, with the first payment due January 1, 2022, and a balloon payment of $1,377,037 due on
December 1, 2024. During 2024, this note was amended with an interest rate of 9.75% and requires
payments of principal and interest in the amount of $14,000 with a balloon payment due on June 1,
2025.

In June 2023, the Company entered into a note receivable related to vehicle financing for an existing
franchisee in the amount of $103,566. The interest rate is 9% and requires payments of principal and
interest in the amount of $2,150 for sixty (60) months, with the first payment due June 1, 2023 and a

maturity date of May 1, 2028.

Given the relative homogeneity of the borrowers (in terms of credit risk) and loans (in terms of type,
amount, and underwriting standards) in the program, the Company manages this loan program on a
collective basis. However, the Company concludes that the loss estimates for loans with credit
deterioration is based on borrower-specific facts and circumstances because the repayment of those
loans depends on facts and circumstances unique to each borrower. Therefore, the Company
estimates expected credit losses on an individual basis for loans that no longer exhibit similar risk
characteristics because of credit deterioration.

To estimate expected credit losses for individual loans without similar risk characteristics, the
Company uses a lost rate method for each loan. Frequently, the Company has insight into the

Pirtek USA. LLC | Subsidiari
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likelihood of a credit loss as a result of information provided by the borrower and recent discussions
with the borrower given the elevated credit risk for these loans.

To estimate expected credit losses for the remainder of the loans that continue to exhibit similar risk
characteristics, the Company considers historical loss information (updated for current conditions and
reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the amortized cost
basis of the pool) using a loss-rate approach.

Note 4 - Intangibles

Effective December 2014, the Company adopted ASU 2014-02 to the FASB ASC 350, which allows
an entity to take goodwill relating to each business combination erreerganization-eventresulting-in
fresh-start-reporting-(amortizable unit of goodwill) and amortize it on a straight-line basis over ten
(10) years, or less than ten (10) years if the Company demonstrates that another useful life is more
appropriate. Goodwill of the Company (or a reporting unit) shall be tested for impairment if an event
occurs, or circumstances change that indicates the fair value of the Company (or the reporting
entity) may be below its carrying amount. The Company has taken the remaining goodwill
associated with the purchase of the assets of Pirtek USA, Inc. in February 1998, and began to
amortize it over a ten

(10) year period effective December 1, 2014. The original costs of goodwill, the master franchise
agreement and the exclusive territory rights were
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows_
Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
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In January 2020, the Company acquired six (6) Pirtek centers which resulted in recording goodwiill
totaling $780,774 and franchise agreements, reacquired, totaling $300,000. Management records
franchise agreements reacquired at fair value. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount that
the carrying amount exceeds its fair value.

Management did not identify an impairment to goodwill and intangible assets during the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022-and-2021.

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets subject to amortization
was as follows:

December34,-2023

Gross Net
Estimated Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Life Amount Amortization Value
Goodwill 10-years $ 975834 $ 13744 $ 62,063
Fotal -3 975834 -$ o137 =3 62.063—
December34,-2022
’ Gross Net
Es l - i : l - .
Gross Net
Estimated carrying Accumulated carrying
December 31, 2024 life amount amortization value
Goodwill 10 years $ 975,834 $ 975,834 $ -
Total $ 975,834 $ 975,834 $ -
Gross Net
Estimated carrying Accumulated carrying
December 31, 2023 life amount amortization value
Goodwill 10 years $ 975,834 $ $
83877191 137,063
3,771 62,063
Total $ 975,834 $ $
#7191 437,063
3,771 62,063
Gross Net
Estimated carrying Accumulated carrying
December 31, 2022 life amount amortization value

Gross Net
, . lated - :
Goodwill 10 years $ 975,834 $ $
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76377183 212;0631
8.771 37,063
Total $ 975,834 $ 763771 % 212,063~
838,771 37.063

Amortization expense of goodwill and-ether-intangible-assets-totaled $75,00062,063, $75,000, and
$75,000 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022-and-2021, respectively.

e
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Note 5 - Long-term notes payable

Long-term notes payable consists of the following at December 31:

202 _ 2023 2022 2024

Note payable, related party, in relation to a
member  contribution agreement (see
Transfers of Interest Note), originally
payable in four quarterly interest only
installments commencing March 2015 and
sixteen quarterly principal installments of
$1,990,404, plus an amount equal to all
interest accrued on the note through the
date of payment, commencing March 2016
through December 2019, interest at 6%. The
note is unsecured. In December 2019, the
note maturity was extended through
December 2024. These notes were paid off
during 2023. $ - $ $  184424717,842,471

Two (2) notes payables in the amounts of
$199,244 USD and $710,557 USD,
respectively. The notes are due on
demand and bear no interest. During 2023,
the note payable of approximately $700,000
was paid off by the Company. The other
loan of $199,255 was paid off by ownership,
recorded as a non-cash members'
contribution, and is reflected in the
aceompanying—econsolidated

accompanying consolidated statements of
efchanges in members' equity (deficit). - - 958.047_ 909,801

Total notes payable

Less:- current portion - - 958047 909,801

Long-term portion $ - S - 3

S £ Y
784 842,471

2474

Note 6 - Transfers of interest
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In accordance with the Company's limited liability company agreement, the membership interests of
the Company shall be assignable in whole or in part. Unless otherwise approved by the members
holding a majority interest, which consent may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion of such
members, the assignee of a members' interest shall have no right to participate in the management
of the business and affairs of the Company. An assignment of a membership interest shall entitle the
assignee to share in such profits and losses, to receive such distribution or distributions, and to
receive such allocation of income, gain, loss, deduction, or credit or similar item to which the assignor
was entitled, to the extent assigned.
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Note 87 - Related party transactions

In December 2020, the Company entered a note receivable with a related party through common
ownership in the amount of $150,000. The note is non-interest bearing and does not require
scheduled payments. NeteThis note was fully paid off during 2022.

During 2024, the Company received product consulting services from a related party. Fees from these

services totaled $120,000 during the year ended December 31, 2024.

Note 98 - Commitments and

contingencies Leases

The Company occupies office facilities under a noncancellable lease_with a related party. As of
January 1, 2023, the Company amended this lease to include warehouse space. This amended lease
is classified as an operating lease with a 20-year term. This lease contains multi-year renewal options,
and renewals are not certain at this stage. Payments under this lease arrangement are all fixed. All
contracts that implicitly or explicitly involve property, plant and equipment are evaluated to determine
whether they are or contain a lease.

At lease commencement, the Company recognizes a lease liability, which is measured at the present
value of future minimum lease payments, and a corresponding right-of-use asset equal to the lease
liability, adjusted for any prepaid lease costs, initial direct costs, and lease incentives. To the extent
a lease arrangement includes both lease and non-lease components, The Company has not elected
the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for its leases. The Company
remeasures lease liabilities and related right-of-use assets whenever there is a change to the lease
term and/or there is a change in the amount of future lease payments.

Pirtek USA. LLC | Subsidiari
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As the rate implicit in the lease is generally not readily determinable, the Company has elected to use
the practical expedient available to private companies and uses a risk-free rate as the discount rate.
For accounting purposes, the Company's leases commence on the earlier of (i) the date upon which
the Company obtains control of the underlying asset and (ii) the contractual effective date of a lease.
Lease commencement for most of the Company's leases coincides with the contractual effective date.
The Company's leases generally have minimum base terms with renewal options or fixed terms with
early termination options. Such renewal and early termination options are exercisable at the option
of the Company and, when exercised, usually provide for rental payments during the extension period
at then current market rates or at pre-determined rental amounts.

Unless the Company determines that it is reasonably certain that the term of a lease will be extended,
such as through the exercise of a renewal option or nonexercise of an early termination option, the
term of a lease begins at lease commencement and spans the duration of the minimum
noncancellable contractual term. When the exercise of a renewal option or nonexercise of early
termination option is reasonably certain, the lease term is measured as ending at the end of the
renewal period or on the date an early termination may be exercised.

The Company includes variable rental payments based on a rate or an index such as the Consumer
Price Index ("CPI") in its measurement of lease payments based on the rate or index in effect at lease
commencement. Other types of variable lease payments are expensed as incurred. Rental payments
on the lease typically provide for fixed minimum payments that increase over the lease term at
predetermined amounts.
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Rent expense for the Company's operating leases involving real estate amounted to $2,789,429
and2,640,691

$2,789,429 and $1,428,643 for the years ending December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively,

and is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Company's consolidated
statements of income.

As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the weighted average lease term remaining was,
respectively, 18 years, 19 years and 9.75 years, and the weighted average incremental borrowing
rate of the Company's operating leases was 4.06%, 4.06% and 4.22%. Supplemental cash flow
information related to the Company's operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022 includes, respectively, cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities of $2,024,469, $2,091,619, and $1,428,643.

Future annual maturity analysis of the Company's lease liabilities is as follows:
Undi ¥ . : ; gl

2024Undiscounted future minimum lease payments $
2137884

Ogeratihg Iéase
2025 2202021%

2026 2,268,0812,147,7

2027 2:336,1242,212,

2028 2,406,2072,278

2029 2,346,915
Thereafter 423466383
7,753,228

Total lease payments

E

48,823,856
Less: imputed interest  (17:506:40815,205

,196)

Total operating lease liability 36,190,547
33,618,660
Operating lease liability, current portion ~ (688.500741,029)

Operating lease liability, net of current portion ~ §
2EE02 047
2,877,631

lleo

December-31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

Employee benefit plan
The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan for all qualifying employees. All employees meeting certain
age and service requirements are eligible to participate in the plan. Eligible employees are allowed
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to defer up to 25% of WWTWWWS_' maximum limitations. The
Company may also make matehifig cortrbutions at its aiscretion. company contributions to the plan

totaled $56.57445,837, $39.04056,571, and $36-20739.040 fdr the years ended December 31,
2024, 2023; and 2022-ard-2021, respectively.

Litigation

From time to time, the Company may become subject to threatened and/or asserted claims arising in
the ordinary course of business. Management provides provisions for these items to the extent that
the losses are deemed both probable and reasonably estimable. There have been provisions of
approximately $243,000, $243,000243,000, and $443,000213,000 recorded for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023; and 2022-and-2021, respectively.
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Pirtek USA, LLC and Subsidiari

Notes to C lidated Financial Stat |
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

Note 1409 - Income taxes

Components of income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

200 e oo
Current tax-expense
2024 2023 2022
Current tax expense ’
Federal tax $ 3,391,240 $ 2,929,903 $ 2,930,487
States tax 1,109,075 475,828 481,565 2
Total current tax expense 4,500,315 3,405,731 3,412,052 22
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 182,475 (128,700) (126812) —=2%
Total income tax expense $ 4682790 $  3277.031 _$ 3285240 _S——H8
Significant components of the Company's net deferred income taxes are as follows:
I, 2 0
$ 458,714 $ 469,073 $ 60,396
. 250
Deferred income tax asset
Deferred income tax liability (861,536) (682,449) (392,223) {651
_$  (402822) _$ 13376 & (aasgoy) ° O

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income
tax purposes. The major temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities
are as follows: inventory capitalization, gains on asset disposals, deferred revenue, depreciation, and
amortization of goodwill.

In assessing the ability to realize the deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more
likely than not that some portion or all the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the
period in which these temporary differences become deductible. ASC 740 requires a valuation
allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based on the weight of the evidence, it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. On
December 31, 2024, 20232021 and 20212022, no valuation allowance was required.

Pirtek USA. LLC | Subsidiari

N - lidated Ei ialS
e e

The open tax years subject to examination with respect to the Company's operations are 2020,-2021
and, 2022_and 2023.

Note 4110 - Concentration

The Company had two (2) vendors that accounted for approximately 4917% of its total purchases
for the year ended December 31, 20232024, two (2) vendors that accounted for approximately 19%
Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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of its total purchases fo "—m—‘_m'*"—-"'“""‘“—""—"‘;‘“."“' and two (2) vendors that

accounted for approximately=2

es ftor the year ended December 31,

202142022. Accounts payable to these vendors totaled $454—6@6630,523, $776,236451,606, and

$194.688776,236 on December 31, 2024, 2023; and d 2022-and-2021, respectively.
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Pirtek USA, LLC and Subsidiari

Notes to C lidated Financial Stat |
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

Note 4211 - Franchising

Revenue and costs consist of the following for the years ended December 31:

2024 2023 2022
Company-owned stores
Total income $ - $ - $ 314,574
Total expenses - = (344,372)
Net income (loss) - company-
owned stores ) - 95 - S (29,798)
Franchise, product and fees
2023 2022 2021
Company-
owned stores- $ - $ 314574 e
Total-income
Fotalexpenses - (344.372) (3;428,024)
Netincome-{loss)—company- -$ - -$ {29.798) -$ 194497
owned stores e
Franchise; productandfees-Total $-41.007,034 $-35.265,913 $ 28.723.166
income 42 817,928 41,007,031 35,265,913
Total expenses (39:643.19530, (26:272.55630, (21.765.10426,
626,772 613,195 272,556)

Net income - franchise, product

and fees _$10303836  _$ 8003357  _§ 6.958.062
12,191,156 10,393,836 8,993,357

Information about the number of Company-owned and franchised stores is as follows:

2024 2023 2022 — 2021

Company-owned stores

Opened - = -

Sold-erconverted- - 3 4

feguiod - - -
In-operation-as-of year-end = - 3
Franchised stores

Opened 27 14 13

GConverted-from-{to)-company-owned 0 3 4

ormainatad 4 3 2
In-operation-as-of year-end 142 9 105

Opened - - -

Sold or converted - - 3

Acquired - - -

In operation as of year-end -
Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025
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Pirtek USA, LLC and Subsidiari

Notes to C lidated Financial Stat |
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

Franchised stores
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EXHIBIT 5

Franchisee and Franchisee Termination Lists

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when
you leave the franchise system.
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LIST OF OPERATIONAL FRANCHISEES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024

ALABAMA

PIRTEK HOOVER

Steve Kampwerth

131 W. Oxmoor Rd. Ste. 101
Birmingham, AL 35209
Phone: 205-618-8485

PIRTEK HUNTSVILLE
David Burns

150 Import Circle NW
Huntsville, AL 35806
Phone: 256-530-6055

PIRTEK MONTGOMERY
Larry & Traci Love_
9348 Bristol Way

Montgomery, AL 36117
Phone: 404-550-6867

PIRTEK TUSCALOOSA
Steve Kampwerth
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 404-550-
6867659-837-7579

PIRTEK-TUSCALOOSA
Steve Kampwerth

ksk 1 ksk
Tusecaloosa; AL-35401
Phone-659-837-7579
ARIZONA

PIRTEK MESA GATEWAY
Melinda & Matt Krneta

8023 E Pecos Rd. Suite 106
Mesa, AZ 85212

Phone: 720-280-8087

PIRTEK SKY HARBOR
Stu Bartlett
5002 S 40th Street, Ste A
Phoenix, AZ 85040
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Phone: 602-414-4673
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CALIFORNIA

Phone:760-423-8141

PIRTEK COMMERCE SOUTH
Kelly Curran

2255 S Atlantic Blvd
Commerce, CA 90040

Phone: 323-724-6737

PIRTEK CORONA
Kelly Curran
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 657-216-1600

PIRTEK INLAND VALLEY
Kelly Curran

909 S. Cucamonga Ave., #101
Ontario, CA 91761

Phone: 909-773-1700

PIRTEK OC

Kelly Curran

1630 S. Sunkist St., Suite
N Anaheim, CA 98206
Phone: 657-216-1600

PIRTEK POWER INN

Doug & Christina Mack 4191
Power Inn Rd, Ste D
Sacramento, CA 95826
Phone: 916-737-7777

PIRTEK SANSan DIEGO BAY
Gregory Shideler

1445 Tidelands Ave, Suites A & B
National City, CA 91950

Phone: 619-259-2949

PIRTEK SAN LEANDRO
Dan & Kathryn Currid
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PIRTEK SFO
Dan & Kathryn Currid
121 S. Maple Ave
South San Francisco, CA 94080
Phone: 650-532-9200

PIRTEK VICTORVILLE

Martha Barron

12454 Industrial Center Dr. Unit #111
Victorville, CA 92395

Phone: 442-229-2125

COLORADO

PIRTEK COLORADO SPRINGS
Aric Stott

15 Buchanan St. Suite 150
Colorado Springs, CO 80907
Phone: 719-719-7779

PIRTEK NOCO

Todd Miceli

4691 Concord Ave Suite 2
Johnstown, CO 80534
Phone: 844-221-2121

PIRTEK NORTH VALLEY

Carl Caroll, Craig Jones & Shannon Perea
150 West 60th Place

Denver, CO 80216

Phone: 303-487-0573

PIRTEK SOUTH VALLEY

Carl Carroll, Craig Jones & Shannon Perea
S. Dawson Circle, Unit 6

Centennial, CO 80112

Phone: 720-377-2171

FLORIDA

PIRTEK ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
David Herbert

285 W. Central Pkwy., #1722
Altamonte Springs, FL 32714
Phone: 407-389-8989
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PIRTEK DAYTONA

Isaac Cooper

Pan-&KarinFerretti-2841 S. Nova Rd., #8
South Daytona, FL 32119

Phone: 386-947-7222

PIRTEK DORAL

Carlos Shortt, Juan Shortt, Ender Bermudez
6452 NW 77th Ct.

Miami, FL 33166

Phone: 305-697-9951

PIRTEK FT. LAUDERDALE
Carlos Shortt

4616 North Powerline Rd
Deerfield Beach, FL 33073
Phone: 954-519-2124

PIRTEK FT. MYERS
Tim Kelly

**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 800-963-2136

PIRTEK JACKSONVILLE
Steve-GouletteAustin Heneveld
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 904-229-4648

PIRTEK LAKELAND

Tim Kelly

3645 Airport Commerce Dr. Suites 1 & 2
Lakeland, FL 33811

Phone: 800-963-2136

PIRTEK OCALA
Tim Kelly

**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 800-963-2136
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PIRTEK ORLANDO
Robert Khoury

1820 S. Division Avenue
Orlando, FL 32805
Phone: 407-843-3322

PIRTEK PALM BEACH

Patricia Riko, Sam Belin, Mark Gustin,
& Raymond & Mary Beth Belin

1300 N. Florida Mango Rd. Unit 19
West Palm Beach, FL 33409

Phone: 561-815-3026

PIRTEK PHILLIPS HWY
Steve-GouletteAustin Heneveld
6000 Phillips Hwy, Ste 7
Jacksonville, FL 32216

Phone: 904-647-6533

PIRTEK PINELLAS
David Herbert
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 813-247-6139

PIRTEK SARASOTA
Tim Kelly

1577 Cattlemen Road
Sarasota, FL 34232
Phone: 800-963-2136

PIRTEK SPACE COAST
Dan & Karin Ferretti
1265 US Highway 1
Rockledge, FL 32955
Phone: 321-504-6006

PIRTEK TAMPA
David Herbert

1502 North 34th St.
Tampa, FL 33605
Phone: 813-247-6139
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PIRTEK TREASURE COAST
Lynn Shepard, Jr.

**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 772-771-0253

GEORGIA

PIRTEK ALPHARETTA
Clay Caldwell

**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 470-799-1389

PIRTEK ATHENS
Michael Nagle
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 678-601-5649

PIRTEK CARROLLTON
Sharon, Alan, & Wesley Hooper
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 470-523-4673

PIRTEK CARTERSVILLE
Matthew Gary

3410-B Hwy 411 NE
White, GA 30184

Phone: 770-305-6126

PIRTEK DOBBINS

Clay Caldwell

1400 South Marietta Pkwy, Suite 110
Marietta, GA 30067

Phone: 678-244-2790

PIRTEK DOUGLASVILLE
Clay Caldwell

**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 470-799-1389
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PIRTEK IDAHO FALLS
Derrick Dalling
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 208-240-1853

ILLINOIS

PIRTEK BOLINGBROOK

Ken Adair & Charles Adair

181 W. Crossroads Pkwy, Unit C
Bolingbrook, IL 60440

Phone: 630-755-5700

PIRTEK GURNEE

Ken Adair & Charles Adair
450 Keller Dr, Suite C
Park City, IL 60085
Phone: 847-553-4224

PIRTEK MCKINLEY PARK
Ken Adair & Charles Adair
3440 S. Ashland Ave
Chicago, IL 60608

Phone: 773-526-4673

PIRTEK O’HARE

Ken Adair & Charles Adair
1499 Tonne Road

Elk Grove Village, IL 60007
Phone: 847-640-7789

PIRTEK ROCKFORD

Robert Banaszak

1500 E Lincoln Highway Unit 3
Dekalb, IL 60015

Phone: 815-676-0960

PIRTEK SOUTH HOLLAND
Ken Adair & Charles Adair
17077-A Westview Ave.
South Holland, IL 60473
Phone: 708-339-4673
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PIRTEK LOUISVILLE WEST
Jose & Tara Evans

**Mobile Only**

Location TBD

Phone: 317-777-4711

LOUISIANA

PIRTEK ELMWOOD
Carl Prince

5229 River Road
Elmwood, LA 70123
Phone: 504-518-4321

PIRTEK GONZALES
Carl Prince

39386 Airline Rd
Gonzales, LA 70737
Phone: 225-955-4819

PIRTEK LAFAYETTE
Dennis Marceaux
**Mobile only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 337-388-0999

MARYLAND

PIRTEK PRINCE GEORGE’S
David Entwistle

9213 Hampton Heights
Capitol Heights, MD 20743
Phone: 301-910-4673

PIRTEK ROCKVILLE

David Entwistle & Kim Zipper
14803 Southlawn Lane, Ste A
Rockville, MD 20850

Phone: 301-910-4673
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Phone: 508-584-9595

PIRTEK BOSTON NORTH
Mark Rudnik

154 Lexington St

Waltham, MA 2452

Phone: 508-584-9595

PIRTEK SOUTH SHORE
Ston Sauveur

**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 508-857-2132

MICHIGAN

PIRTEK AUBURN HILLS
Eric Lacoste

2285 North Opdyke Rd Suite D
Auburn Hills, MI 48326
Phone: 248-997-4800

PIRTEK GRAND RAPIDS

Oliver Romano

3504 Roger B. Chaffee Memorial Dr.
Grand Rapids, MI 49548

Phone: 888-747-8351

PIRTEK FLINT

Eric LacoSuite
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 810-207-0001

PIRTEK KALAMAZOO
Ryan Schewe

**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 1-866-6-PIRTEK
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PIRTEK LANSING
Sharon Dorfman-Usher
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 517-798-2010

PIRTEK MADISON HEIGHTS

Jenny Dorfman & Sharon Dorfman-Usher
25363 Dequindre Road

Madison Heights, MI 48071

Phone: 248-336-8000

PIRTEK STERLING HEIGHTS

Jenny Dorfman & Sharon Dorfman-Usher
40020 Mound Rd.

Sterling Heights, MI 48310

Phone: 586-276-9100

PIRTEK WESTLAND

Jenny Dorfman & Sharon Dorfman-Usher
28540 Van Born Road

Westland, MI 48186

Phone: 734-728-7000
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PIRTEK PLYMOUTH
Craig & Lynette Heitkamp
11350 Hwy 55

Plymouth, MN 55441
Phone: 763-475-0475

PIRTEK WEST METRO
Craig & Lynette Heitkamp
**Mobile Only**
Location TBD

Phone: 651-641-1414

MISSOURI

PIRTEK FENTON

Wes Snyder

Richard- & Lynn-Armstrone316 Axminister Drive
Fenton, MO 63026

Phone: 636-600-1981

PIRTEK OVERLAND

Wes Snyder

9425 Dielman Rock Island Ind Dr.
Olivette, MO 63132

Phone: 314-423-4600

PIRTEK ST. LOUIS
Wes Snyder
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 314-423-4600

PIRTEK SPRINGFIELD
Frank & Greg Myers
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 636-627-7476

NEVADA

PIRTEK LAS VEGAS NORTH
Todd Miceli

3908 Civic Center Dr

North Las Vegas, NV 89030
Phone: 801-419-0482
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NEW JERSEY

PIRTEK NEWARK

Rob Chron

701-A Springfield Road South
Kenilworth, NJ 07033

Phone 908-624-9990

PIRTEK S. BRUNSWICK
Rob Chron

2553 US Highway 130, Suite 1
Cranbury, NJ 08512

Phone: 732-940-7333

NEW YORK

PIRTEK MID-HUDSON VALLEY
Fernando Del Aquila

**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 845-383-0196

PIRTEK STATEN ISLAND
Jimmy & Kayla O’Hare
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 718-849-4500

NORTH CAROLINA

PIRTEK GASTONIA
Viresh Sitapara

1101 West Franklin Blvd
Gastonia, NC 28052
Phone: 980-320-8484

PIRTEK NORTH END

Mike MeArdleDaniel Freeman
10806 Reames Road Suite B
Charlotte, NC 28269

xMebie-Only** Loeation:-BD-Phone: 704-342-1217
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PIRTEK PIEDMONT TRIAD

Phil & Jeanne Kusiak, Holland Claytor
104-F Meadowood Street Suite F
Greensboro, NC 27409

Phone: 336-369-2600

PIRTEK RALEIGH NORTH
Tom Pallisco

4441-106 Six Forks Rd #149
Raleigh, NC 27609

Phone: 248-388-3097

PIRTEK SOUTH END

Mike MeArdleDaniel Freeman
3401 St. Vardell Lne. Ste. K
Charlotte, NC 28217

Phone: 704-342-1677

PIRTEK WILMINGTON
Paul Smela

**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 910-409-0194

PIRTEK WINSTON-SALEM
Steven & Amy Smith
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 336-726-1777

OHIO

PIRTEK COLUMBUS NORTH
Ed & Suzanne Cushing
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 380-203-0077

PIRTEK COLUMBUS SOUTH
Ed & Suzanne Cushing
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 380-203-0077
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PIRTEK ELYRIA
Nathan Hunt

17000 Truax Ave
Cleveland, OH 44111
Phone: 216-804-0350

PIRTEK READING ROAD
Todd & Wendy Cleveland
3478 Hauck Rd.

Cincinnati, OH 45241
Phone: 513-948-1242

PIRTEK TOLEDO
Jenny & Sharon Dorfman_

1205 S. Reynolds Road
Toledo, OH 43615

xMebie-Only** Loeation:-BD-Phone: 419-248-9000

PIRTEK VALLEY VIEW
Bill- HubbelTyler Drehs &
Taylor Drehs 5541 Canal Road
Valley View, OH 44125

Phone: 216-524-5000

KILAHOMA

PIRTEK OKC WEST

Brandon Shavers & Robert (Hutch) Hutchinson
8636 SW 2nd Street

Oklahoma City, OK 73128
Phone: 405-446-4959

OREGON

PIRTEK PDX
Richard Venter
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 971-442-2771

Litera Comparison of 2024 FDD (Clean) - Initial and 2025 Pirtek FDD (clean) 03/31/2025

17
L



PENNSYLVANIA

PIRTEK MONROEVILLE
Curt Mears

125 Seco Road, Ste 3
Monroeville, PA 15146
Phone: 412-373-9720

PIRTEK NORTHEAST PHILADELPHIA
Ken & Charles Adair

6940 State Rd. Unit C

Philadephia, PA 19135

Phone: 215-309-9060

PIRTEK SOUTH PHILADELPHIA
Ken & Charles Adair
31 Industrial Highway
Essington, PA 19029
Phone: 610-586-2290
SOUTH

CAROLINA

PIRTEK UPSTATE

Brian Gourley & Nathan Lee
110 Corp Drive. Suite C
Spartanberg, SC 29303
Phone: 864-256-1787

TENNESSEE

PIRTEK CHATTANOOGAKNOXVILLE

Drew & Kyle Roschli

207 Center Park Dr. #2190

Knoxville, TN 37922

Phone: 865-321-8844
e e

PIRTEK MEMPHIS SOUTH

Jeff Hale

**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 423-475-

6230901-461-6673
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PIRTEK EOSTERMURFREESBORO
Dylan & Dan Rausch
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 615-326-1300
Matthew Meiia
PIRTEK WOODBINE
Dylan & Dan Rausch
109 Crutchfield Ave.
Nashville, TN 37210
Phone: 615-326-1300

Knoxville, TN-37922
Phone:865-321-8844
TEXAS

PIRTEK ARLINGTON

Greg & Debi Little

2887 W Pioneer Pkwy, Suite E
Arlington, TX 76013

Phone: 817-583-8280

PIRTEK BAYTOWN
Brian Rue

4308-A Garth Rd.
Baytown, TX 77521
Phone: 281-837-7203

PIRTEK BEAUMONT
Tayo Ogundiya
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 409-277-4029

PIRTEK BELTWAY NORTH
Steve Marullo

1920 Rankin Rd. Suite 170
Houston, TX 77073

Phone: 713-649-3801

PIRTEK BROADWAY
Robert & Sabrina Guzman
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PIRTEK BRUSHY CREEK
Jeff & Glenda Brilliott
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 512-448-0800

PIRTEK COLLEGE STATION
Brandon & Jessie Jones
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 979-789-4673

PIRTEK CONROE
Steve Marullo

6205 Brookhill Dr., #1
Phone: 346-406-4122

PIRTEK BESOTOCORPUS CHRISTI
serereTasker

Kahn Desai & Nik Bhakta

**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 682281

7999361-360-0007

PIRTEK ELPASODENTON
Guilermo-MadrazeJason Timothy
2126 Hamilton Rd Suite 350-360

Argyle, TX 76226
Phone: 940-241-0082

PIRTEK DESOTO
Jerome Carter
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD
Phone: 945-283-
9662682-281-7999

PIRTEK FORT WORTH NORTH
Chancey Davis III

5001 North Freeway; Ste. 143

Fort Worth, TX 76106

Phone: 817-615-9005

PIRTEK FORT WORTH SOUTH
Chancey Davis III
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PIRTEK GRAND PRAIRIE

Stuart Meorrison

David Kellerstrass & Randy White
1517 W. North Carrier Pkwy Ste. 138
Grand Prairie, TX 75050

Phone: 469-460-7100

PIRTEK GULFGATE
Steve Marullo

6205 Brookhill Drive #1
Houston, TX 77087
Phone: 713-649-3800

PIRTEK KATY

Brandon & Jessie Jones

1920 Primewest Parkway Suite #500
Katy, TX 77449

Phone: (979) 324-7050

thd

PIRTEK LIBERTY HILLS
Seth Huckaba

**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 512-737-HOSE

PIRTEK LOVE FIELD

Stuart MerrisenDavid Kellerstrass
& Randy White 2126 Irving Blvd.-
Dallas; TX-75247

Dallas, TX 75247

Phone: 469-460-7111

PIRTEK MANSFIELD — BURLESON
Greg Little, Alex Little & Debi Little
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 817-592-0999

PIRTEK MCKINNEY
Sahin Kutuk

147 Lloyds Rd. Suite 415
Little Elm, TX 75068
Phone: 469-905-6700
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PIRTEK MIDLAND-ODESSA

Derrick & SuitephanieStephanie Savory
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 520-999-1656

PIRTEK NEW BRAUNFELS
Robert & Sabrina Guzman
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 210-822-0800

PIRTEK NORTHWEST CROSSING
Brian Rue

13230 Hempstead Rd., Ste. 306
Houston, TX 77040

Phone: 281-741-2979

PIRTEK PEARLAND
Brian Rue

2201 TX-35 Suite D
Alvin, TX 77511
Phone: 713-572-5439

PIRTEK PLANO SOUTH
EdLeutherbackBrian Reeves
811 E Plano Pkwy, Ste 121
Plano, TX 75074

Phone: 972-423-1111

PIRTEK RIVERSIDE
Jeff & Glenda Brilliott
1000 Windsor Dr
McKinney, TX 75072
Phone: 512-448-0800

PIRTEK ROSENBERG
Brandon Jones & Jessie Jones
**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 346-576-4673
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PIRTEK ROWLETT

Jackson Grant & Rachel Grant
13661 Jupiter Rd Suite #307
Dallas, TX 75238

Phone: 972-645-1748

PIRTEK STAFFORD
Steve & Anita Marullo
**Mobile Only**
Location: TBD

Phone: 713-649-3800

PIRTEK TOMBALL
Brian Rue

26010 TX-249, Suite B
Tomball, TX 77375
Phone: 281-741-8090

PIRTEK WACO

John Baker

125 Topeka Drive Suite D
Woodway, TX 76712
Phone:254-294-8508

PIRTEK WEATHERFORD
Rex Lampety

**Mobile Only**

Location: TBD

Phone: 682-803-9711

UTAH

PIRTEK CLEARFIELD
Todd Miceli

3228 South 900 West
South Salt Lake, UT 84119
Phone: 385-429-8377

PIRTEK LEHI

Todd Miceli

1550 North State, Unit A.
Lehi, UT 84043

Phone: 385-336-6999
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FRANCHISEES WHO SIGNED AGREEMENTS BUT WERE NOT
OPERATIONAL AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024

e e el
Lansing. M1
Michele Mitchell & Scott Mitchell

San Marcos, CA
Phone: 248-336-8000760-218-4139

Brandon-&JessicJones
Rosenbere X

Rob Fitzgibbons & Jason Fitzgibbons
Jackson, MI

Phone: 832-737-4673269-832-0488

Bert Banaszak

Hampshire, IL

Phone: 563-202-1621
Balie Kirha Tulsa West OK 0K

Zachary McNelis

Austin, TX

Phone: (512) 885-0885

William Foshage & Ryan Burton
Avon, MA

Phone: 345-278-7+13978-817-2681

Dennis Mareeaux
Lafayette LA
Robert “Hutch” Hutchinson, Brandon Shavers & Gary Shavers

Oklahoma City, OK
Phone: 337-388-0999405-623-7651

Alex Nyame
Lawrenceville, GA

Phone: 732-763-4916
1o Bl % Martha B N illeC
Michael Lee
Jackson, MI
Phone: 517-797-4352

Colin Clark
Bend, OR
Phone: 541-480-9214
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Brian Gourley & Nathan Lee

Campobello, SC
Phone: 760-508-6351864-256-1787

T i
Portland-OR

Robert Fitzpatrick

Bluffton, SC

Phone: 425-269-8653914-329-5603
Jeff Hale-

Memphis, TN

Robert Greenberger

Smithtown, NY

Phone: 991-461-
6673516-929-4673

BrianRue-
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LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO CEASED TO DO BUSINESS UNDER THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, OR HAD AN OUTLET TERMINATED, CANCELLED OR
NOT RENEWED AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024

Lee Andersen

Bakersfield, CA

Phone: 760-423-8141

Reason for Leaving: Mutual-Termination

Guillermo Madrazo
El Paso, TX
Phone: 915-283-9662
Reason for Leaving: Termination
Sal ~avalion& Luis Al Tallal e
Matthew Gary

Chattanooga, TN
Phone: 850-755-

7561423-475-6230
Reason for Leaving: Mutual Termination

Sal Fovaliori g Luis Al
Posen Lo

Balie Kirha

Tulsa West, OK

Phone: 850-755-7561315-278-7113
Reason for Leaving: Mutual Termination
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FRANCHISEES TRANSFERRED THEIR FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AS OF

DECEMBER 31, 20232024
PIRTEK Lake-
WinnebagoeFenton
Phone: (9799324~

7050636-600-1981

From: Richard Armstrong & Lynn Armstrong/WALA Holdings LLC
To: Wes Snyder/ St Louis Hydraulics, LLC

PIRTEK Foster (renamed PIRTEK Woodbine)
Phone: 615-326-1300

From: Matt Meija/WPLJR LLC
Mes@ment—@mu—pAD Services LLC:
PIRTEK Plano South
Phone: 972-423-1111

From: Ed Loutherback/Edwin Paul, Inc.
To: Brian Reeves/ SMR Reeves

r-&To: Dylan & Dan Rausch/ BKJ-

PIRTEK

OverlandDaytona

Phone: 28+-837-

7203386-947-7222

From: Jared-Gross-&-AndrewXavier/GrossDan Ferretti and Karin

Ferretti/Space Coast Hydraulics, Inc. To: Wes-Sayder/-St-
Leuislsaac Cooper/ Daytona Hydraulics, LLC

PIRTEK Philips Highway
Phone: 904-647-6533

From: Stephen Goulette/Trollinator Corporation
To: Austin Heneveld/ Locke and Leigh LL.C

PIRTEK St-

EouisJacksonville

Phone: 210-822-

0800904-229-4648

From: Stephen Goulette/Trollinator Corporation
To: Austin Heneveld/ Locke and Leigh LL.C
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PIRTEK South End
Phone: 704-342-1677

From: Mike McArdle/McArdle Enterprises, LL.C
To: Daniel Freeman/ DZIO Global Enterprises, LLC

PIRTEK North End

Phone: 704-342-1217

From: Mike McArdle/McArdle Enterprises, LLC
To: Daniel Freeman/ DZIO Global Enterprises, LLC

PIRTEK Grand Prairie

Phone: 469-460-7100

From: Stuart Morrison/Hydraulic Hose of Love Field LLC
To: David Kellerstrass & Randy White/ Hyd-TX, LLC
PIRTEK Love Field

Phone: 469-460-7111

From: Stuart Morrison/Pirdal LLC

To: David Kellerstrass & Randy White/ Hyd-TX, LLC
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EXHIBIT 11

Manual Table of Contents
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1. INTRODUCTION TO THE MANUAL

1.2 Ml Orgamization

This manual is organized into 12 main sections:

Section 1: Introduction to the Manual 1
Section 2: Introduction to the Franchise System 56
Section 3: Understanding Franchising 1718
Section 4: Startup Process 2426
Section 5: Human Resources 2527
Section 6: General Operating Procedures 5658
Section 7: Mobile Operating Procedures 7577
Section 8: Sales 8486
Section 9: Customer Experience 124123
Section 10:  Finance and Accounting 126128
Section 11: ~ Marketing 130132
Section 12:  Additional Resources 164166

You should read the entire manual at least once. Then when you refer back to the manual, the
detailed table of contents will help you find the section relevant to what you are looking for.
htreduection-to-the Manual V6-
123423
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EXHIBIT 12

State Effective Dates
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be
registered or filed with the states, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois,
Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota,
Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the
following states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective

dates:
California: Apr-HE 2023 asamended-November 22203 pending
Hawaii: May2-2023 as-amended November 22.2023pending
Illinois: Apri-42023 as-amended November 14, 2023pending
Indiana: May18,2023 asamended November 1H0:2023pending
Maryland: September 12,2023 asamended December H52023pending
Michigan: Aprib 6, 2023 as amended November 10, 2023pending
Minnesota: May18,2023 as-amended November 30,2023pending
New York: Apri 20,2023 asamended November +72023pending
North Dakota: Aprih 14 2023, as amended December 27, 202 3pending
Rhode Island: Apr 282023 mrended-Neovember 29203 pending
South Dakota: Aprit 5. 2023 as amended November 10, 2023pending
Virginia: Apri 28,2023 as-amended December H2023pending
Washington: 5 pending
Wisconsin: Mareh-31,2023 as-amended November13,2023pending

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as
those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.
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EXHIBIT 13

Receipts
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If Pirtek USA LLC offers you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or
an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. lowa requires that we provide you with
this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 calendar days before
you sign a binding agreement with, or make payment to, us or one of our affiliates in connection
with the proposed sale. New York requires that we provide you with this Disclosure Document at
the earlier of the first personal meeting or ten business days before you sign a binding agreement
with, or make payment to, us or one of our affiliates in connection with the proposed sale. Michigan
requires that we provide you with this Disclosure Document ten business days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make payment to, us or one of our affiliates in connection with the
proposed sale.

If Pirtek USA LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C., 20580 and
the appropriate state agency identified on Exhibit 1.

The name, principal business address and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the
franchise is: John Dobelbower, Vice President of Franchise Development, or ,
300 Gus Hipp Boulevard, Rockledge, Florida 32955, (321) 701-3330.

Issuance Date: March 2931, 20242025.

I received a Disclosure Document issued March 2931, 20242025 that included the following Exhibits:
(1) List of State Administrators and Agent for Service of Process; (2) Development Agreement; (3)
Franchise Agreement, (4) Financial Statements; (5) Franchisee and Franchisee Termination Lists;

(6) Form Confidentiality Agreement; (7) Form Franchise Renewal Addendum; (8) Form SBA
Addendum; (9) Form General Release; (10) Form Assignment and Consent Agreement; (11) Manual
Table of Contents; (12) State Effective Dates; and (13) Receipts.

Date: Signed:
Print Name:
Address:
City: State
Phone () Zip

Date: Signed:
Print Name:
Address:
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

City: State
Phone () Zip:
COPY FOR FRANCHISEE

If Pirtek USA LLC offers you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar
days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale. lowa requires that we provide you with this Disclosure
Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 calendar days before you sign a binding
agreement with, or make payment to, us or one of our affiliates in connection with the proposed sale. New
York requires that we provide you with this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting
or ten business days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make payment to, us or one of our
affiliates in connection with the proposed sale. Michigan requires that we provide you with this Disclosure
Document ten business days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make payment to, us or one of
our affiliates in connection with the proposed sale.

If Pirtek USA LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C., 20580 and
the appropriate state agency identified on Exhibit 1.

The name, principal business address and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the
franchise is: John Dobelbower, Vice President of Franchise Development, or
, 300 Gus Hipp Boulevard, Rockledge, Florida 32955, (321) 701-3330.

Issuance Date: March 2931, 20242025.

I received a Disclosure Document issued March 2931, 20242025 that included the following Exhibits:
(1) List of State Administrators and Agent for Service of Process; (2) Development Agreement; (3)
Franchise Agreement, (4) Financial Statements; (5) Franchisee and Franchisee Termination Lists; (6)
Form Confidentiality Agreement; (7) Form Franchise Renewal Addendum; (8) Form SBA Addendum; (9)
Form General Release; (10) Form Assignment and Consent Agreement; (11) Manual Table of Contents;
(12) State Effective Dates; and (13) Receipts.

Date: Signed:
Print Name:
Address:
City: State
Phone () Zip

Date: Signed:
Print Name:
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

Address:

City: State
Phone () Zip
COPY-EORPIRTEK

COPY FOR PIRTEK
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